
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Town Hall 

1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

 

Wednesday, December 12, 2018 
7:00 PM 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION  

• Introduction of New Reserve Police Officer Luis Miguel Melendrez 

• Introduction of New Police Joshua Moreno 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Declaring the Results of the General Municipal Election Held on 
November 6, 2018, and Such Other Matters as Provided by Law. 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the November 28, 2018 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 4, 2018 Special Meeting. 

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid November 2018.  

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the Colma Fire 
Protection District and the Town of Colma, Articulating the Responsibilities of the Town of Colma 
And Colma Fire Protection District in Preparing for and Responding to Disasters. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Contract for Janitorial Maintenance Services with Bay 
Contract Maintenance, Inc. 

7. Motion Accepting the Development Impact Fee Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 and 
Authorizing a Copy to Be Posted on the Town’s Website. 

8. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Housing 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Endowment and Regional Trust of San Mateo County (HEART) for the Town to Lend its 
Uncommitted Housing Funds to HEART. 

NEW BUSINESS 

9. COUNCIL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

Consider: Motion Approving Committee Assignments for 2019 and Granting to the Appointee 
Discretion in Voting on Matters Brought Before the Committee. 

10. COUNCIL OF CITIES AND CITY SELECTION 

Consider: Motion Confirming Designation of the Mayor as the Voting Member for the Council of 
Cities, Designating an Alternate Voting Member, and Giving the Voting Member Discretion on Any 
and All Matters to be Considered.  

STUDY SESSION 

11. COST OF SERVICE 

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Staff Report re Declaration of Election Results  Page 1 of 2 
12/12/18 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Declaration of Election Results 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD 
ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018, AND SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS PROVIDED BY LAW 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached resolution (and exhibit to the resolution) is required by state law to declare the 
results of the election.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND 

Because this was a consolidated Statewide election, the County Registrar of voters conducted 
the November 6, 2018 general municipal election on behalf of the Town.  Recently amended 
state law gives the County elections official 30 days to canvass the returns and submit the 
results to the City Clerk (Elections Code sec 15372).  Upon receipt of the results from the 
County elections official, the City Clerk (as the Town’s elections official) shall prepare a certified 
statement of the results of the election and submit it to the City Council (as the Town’s 
governing body) no later than the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting following 
receipt of the results, or at a special meeting called for this purpose (Elections Code section 
10262(b)).   The County has provided the certified statement of the results of the election to 
the Town. 

At the next regularly scheduled meeting (or at a special meeting called for this purpose) the 
City Council is required to declare the results by resolution (Elections Code sec 10263).    
Following the Council’s declaration of results, the Town elections official must immediately sign 
and deliver to each elected person a certificate of election and administer the oath of office to 
each elected person (Elections Code sec 10265). The City Council must also choose one of its 

Item #1



Staff Report re Declaration of Election Results   Page 2 of 2 
12/12/18 

members as Mayor, and one of its members as Mayor Pro Tempore/Vice-Mayor (Government 
Code 36801).  

ANALYSIS 

The election was held on November 6, 2018. The law sets forth a specific procedure (as 
outlined above) for declaring the results of the election. In accordance with the law, the County 
Elections Officer has conducted a canvass of the votes and has certified the results to the 
Colma Town Council (Exhibit A to proposed Resolution). The City Council must now adopt a 
resolution officially declaring the results of the election. (Elections Code § 10260-10265) The 
proposed resolution meets the requirements of law. 
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution declaring the results of the 
November 6, 2018 election.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  



Res. 2018-XX – Declaration of Election Results Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE  
GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018,  

AND SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS PROVIDED BY LAW 

The City Council of the Town of Colma, California, does resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) A General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the Town of Colma, County of
San Mateo, California, on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, as required by law. 

(b) Notice of Election was given in time, form and manner as provided by law;  voting 
precincts were properly established; election officers were appointed; and in all respects the 
election was held and conducted and the votes were cast, received and canvassed and the 
returns made and declared in time, form, and manner as required by the provisions of the laws 
of the State of California relating to general law cities; and 

(c) The San Mateo County Elections Official has canvassed the returns of the election and 
has certified the results to the City Council of the Town of Colma, which results are received, 
attached and made a part hereof as Exhibit A. 

2. Declaration of Results.

The City Council declares and determines that: 

(a) Number of Ballots. The whole number of ballots cast in the precincts, the whole number 
of vote by mail voter ballots cast in the Town, the whole number of provisional ballots cast in 
the Town, and the total number of ballots cast in the Town is set forth in the Certificate of 
Election from the San Mateo County Elections Official, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
made a part hereof. 

(b) Election of Two Council Members. 

(1) The names of the persons voted for at the election for member of the City 
Council are as follows: 

JOANNE F. DEL ROSARIO 
HELEN FISICARO 

(2) The number of votes given at each precinct and the number of votes given in 
the Town to each of the above named persons for the respective offices for which the 
persons were candidates are listed in Exhibit A attached. The City Council does declare 
and determine that the following persons were each elected as Member of the Town 
of Colma City Council for the full term of four years: 

JOANNE F. DEL ROSARIO 
HELEN FISICARO 

(c) Approval of Measure “PP”.  

Attachment A



Res. 2018-XX – Declaration of Election Results  Page 2 of 3 

(1) The measure voted upon at the election is as follows: 

“To maintain and improve general Town services, such as police service levels, 
street operations and maintenance, as well as parks, community buildings and 
infrastructure; shall the Town of Colma adopt an ordinance establishing a 12% 
Transient Occupancy ("Hotel") Tax generating approximately $319,000 annually 
until ended by voters, if a hotel is developed, requiring annual audits and no tax 
rate increase without voter approval?” 

 
(2) As result of the election, a majority of Colma voters voting on this measure  
did vote in favor of it, and that the measure was carried, and shall be deemed 
adopted and ratified. 

 
3.  Orders.  
 
(a) The City Clerk shall enter on the records of the City Council of the Town, a statement of 
the result of the election, showing: (1) the whole number of votes/ballots cast in the Town; (2) 
the names of the persons voted for; (3) the measure(s) voted upon; (4) for what office each 
person was voted for; (5) the number of votes given at each precinct to each person, and for 
and against each measure; and (6) the total number of votes/ballots given to each person, and 
for and against each measure.      

(b) The City Clerk shall immediately make and deliver to each of the persons so elected a 
Certificate of Election signed by the City Clerk and authenticated. The City Clerk or some other 
duly authorized person shall administer to each person elected the Oath of Office prescribed in 
the Constitution of the State of California and shall have them subscribe to it and file it in the 
office of the City Clerk.  Each and all of the persons so elected shall then be inducted into the 
respective office to which they have been elected. 

(b) The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution and enter it 
into the book of original resolutions, and upon entry thereof, this Resolution shall constitute the 
official record of the results of said election. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Res. 2018-XX – Declaration of Election Results  Page 3 of 3 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-__ was duly adopted at a special meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on December 12, 2018, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
Attachment:  Exhibit A - Official Results of November 6, 2018 Election, Certified by County 
Elections Officer 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit A

























Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, November 28, 2018 

CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM 

Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

Council Present – Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, and Council Members John Irish 
Goodwin, Diana Colvin and Helen Fisicaro were present. Mayor Raquel Gonzalez was absent. 

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Administrative 
Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, City Planner Michael 
Laughlin, Police Chief Kirk Stratton and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Vice Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were 
requested. The Vice Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor ✓

Joanne F. del Rosario ✓

John Irish Goodwin ✓

Diana Colvin ✓

Helen Fisicaro ✓

4 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Vice Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:02 p.m. Dustin Chase of 
Lucky Chances encouraged Council to attend an upcoming public meeting of the Bureau of 
Gambling Control. The Vice Mayor closed the public comment period at 7:13 p.m.   

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the November 14, 2018 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Section 5.12.030 Related to
The Purposes and Use of the Housing Fund Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3).

3. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Sections 1.01.060 and
1.02.080, Relating to Regular Meeting Locations and Bulletin Boards.

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Bulk Cable Television
Services Agreement with Comcast to Include New Residential Units.

5. Motion to Approve the Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR).

Item #2



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Hiring of More Than One Part-Time Community 
Service Officer. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
6; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor     ✓ 

Joanne F. del Rosario ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

 4 0    

STUDY SESSION 

7. COST OF SERVICE  

Administrative Services Director Pak Lin and Brad Donohue presented the staff report. 
Greta Davis and Kevin Gardner from consulting firm NBS were also present to answer 
questions. Vice Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 8:39 p.m. Resident 
Jeannine Lu made a comment. The Vice Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:40 p.m. 
Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next City Council Meeting will be our Town Hall Grand Opening and Council 
Reorganization on Tuesday, December 4th at 4:00p.m. here at Town Hall.  

The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, December 12, 2018 at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chamber.  

REPORTS 

City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report on the following topics: 

• The Holiday Tree Lighting and Craft Night will take place at Town Hall on Friday, 
November 30, 2018. 

• Colma Police and the Colma Fire District are putting on a Stuff the Cruiser Toy Drive 
at Target on Saturday, December 1, 2018 to benefit local families.  

• Town Staff is also hosting a Toy Drive at Town Hall. 
• Breakfast With Santa will be at the Colma Community Center on Saturday, 

December 1, 2018. 
• Congresswoman Jackie Speier will have a book signing event at the Colma 

Community Center on Monday, December 3, 2018. 
• The Town’s Adult Holiday Party will be at the South San Francisco Conference 

Center on Saturday, December 8, 2018. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Vice Mayor del Rosario adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. in memory of Frank Balestreri, 
friend and former coworker of Council Member Fisicaro; Gil Fontana, longtime Colma 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Firefighter and resident; and Theresa Fontana, matriarch of the Fontana Family, longtime 
Colma residents and business owners. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Tuesday, December 4, 2018 

6:30 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Mayor del Rosario called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Council Present –Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Council Members John Irish Goodwin, Diana 
Colvin and Helen Fisicaro were present. Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez was absent.  

INTRODUCTIONS 

Vice Mayor del Rosario welcomed the audience and acknowledged local dignitaries and elected 
officials in attendance:  

Dennis Fisicaro, Former Mayor 

Mary Brodzin, Former Council Member 

Supervisor David Canepa 

Dr. Fel Amistad, Member of the State Commission Board of Professional Engineers 

Walter Batara, Member of the San Mateo Commission on Aging 

Colma Fire Protection District, Chief Geoff Balton 

Ed Graham, Vice President of the Colma Historical Association 

Raghda Karajah, representative from Congresswoman Jackie Speire’s office 

South San Francisco Council Member Elect Buenaflor Nicolas 

Jonathan Cano, Vice President of the Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce 

Former Colma City Manager Sean Rabe  

Former Colma City Manager Bill Norton 

Vice Mayor del Rosario introduced the following Town of Colma Staff members: 
Brian Dossey, City Manager 

Kirk Stratton, Police Chief  

Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 

Brad Donohue, Director of Planning and Public Works 

Michael Laughlin, City Planner 

Cynthia Morquecho, Recreation Manager 

Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Darcy De Leon, Administrative Technician 

ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS OF OFFICE TO RE-ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Vice Mayor del Rosario accounced, “This past November 6, 2018, Colma had an election for two 
Council Members. Council Member Fisicaro and I ran unopposed. Tonight, we will be sworn in as 
re-elected Council Members.” 

Vice Mayor asked Regina Fisicaro to come to the podium to administer the Oath of Office to re-
elected Council Member Fisicaro. Council Member Fisicaro welcomed guest and made comments. 

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 3 

Vice Mayor asks Denise Tomkinson to please come to the podium to administer her Oath of Office. 
Vice Mayor del Rosario welcomed guest and made comments. 

REMARKS BY OUT-GOING MAYOR 

PRESENTATIONS TO OUT-GOING MAYOR 

Vice Mayor del Rosario announced that because Mayor Gonzalez was not able to attend this 
evening, her remarks as outgoing Mayor and any presentations to her will be done at a future 
Council Meeting.  

NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR 

The Vice Mayor called upon the Council for nominations for Mayor. Council Member Fisicaro 
nominated Joanne F. del Rosario for Mayor, and the nomination was seconded by Council Member 
Colvin. There were no other nominations, and Vice Mayor del Rosario closed the nominations for 
Mayor and called for a vote.   

 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to select Joanne F. del Rosario as Mayor, and the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor     ✓ 

Joanne F. del Rosario ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

 4 0    

 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE TO NEW MAYOR  

Supervisor David Canepa came to the podium to administer the Oath of Office to the new Mayor.  
After receiving the Oath of Office, Mayor del Rosario introduced her guests and gave her remarks 
as the in-coming Mayor. 

 
NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF VICE MAYOR 

Mayor del Rosario called upon the Council to make nominations for Vice Mayor. Council Member 
Fisicaro nominated John Irish Goodwin for Vice Mayor, and the nomination was seconded by 
Council Member Colvin. There were no other nominations, and Mayor del Rosario closed the 
nominations for Mayor and called for a vote.   

 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to select John Irish Goodwin as Vice Mayor, and the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     



 

Page 3 of 3 

Raquel Gonzalez     ✓ 

 4 0    

 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE TO VICE MAYOR 

Supervisor David Canepa came to the podium to administer the Oath of Office to the new Vice 
Mayor. After receiving the Oath of Office, Vice Mayor Goodwin introduced his guests and gave his 
remarks as the in-coming Vice Mayor. 

 
SIGNING OF THE VALUES BASED CODE OF CONDUCT 

Mayor del Rosario announced, “Each year the Council signs the Values Based Code of Conduct 

to promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional conduct in the 

Town’s government. Because we seek public confidence in the Town’s services and public trust 

of its decision-makers, the City Council adopts and pledges to follow this Value-Based Code of 

Conduct, which includes the values of fairness, honesty and integrity, responsibility, vision and 

respect.”  

She gave each Council Member a copy of the Values Based Code of Conduct and they each 

signed the pledge.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the Special Meeting at 6:52 p.m. and invited everyone to join the 
Council in the reception that followed.   
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

 

 
  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #4





































Staff Report re Fire District MOU Page 1 of 2 

12/12/2018 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael Laughlin, City Planner 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: CFPD MOU with Town of Colma 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
COLMA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND THE TOWN OF COLMA, ARTICULATING THE 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN OF COLMA AND COLMA FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT IN PREPARING FOR AND RESPONDING TO DISASTERS.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Council’s adoption of the proposed resolution would approve a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) to articulate the responsibilities of the Town and Colma Fire Protection 
District (CFPD) in preparing for and responding to disasters. The MOU would be effective for 
five (5) years and may be extended for up to an additional five (5) years if agreed upon by all 
parties. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Since CFPD is already providing fire protection services to the Town, no substantial fiscal impact 
is anticipated. However, there may be minor costs in staff time through additional coordination 
between the two parties. In the event of a disaster, the MOU will maximize the possibility of 
Federal and State reimbursement since the MOU requires both parties to keep separate 
accounting records. 

ANALYSIS 

The Town of Colma Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Action C-14 is to “Develop a standing 
Master Services Agreement with the Colma Fire Protection District to formalize existing 
administrative and technical services relationships.” The approval of the MOU would complete 
this action, and the Town would be able to report this as a completed action item to FEMA and 
the State Office of Emergency Services.  

Item #5



Staff Report re Fire District MOU   Page 2 of 2 

12/12/2018 

 
The MOU encourages continued coordination and improves communication between the two 
parties especially in the areas of emergency preparedness and disaster response. The two 
parties are required to evaluate the MOU annually and have the ability to revise and develop 
goals. The MOU is effective for a five (5) year period and can be renewed prior to termination 
for up to an additional five (5) years. Additionally, the MOU can be terminated at any time by 
written notice from either party.     
 
The MOU was approved by the CFPD Board on November 20, 2018. 
 

Council Adopted Values 

The proposed resolution to approve the MOU between the CFPD and the Town of Colma is the 
responsible thing to do as it allows more opportunities for emergency preparedness and creates 
a plan to respond to disasters, both of which protect the Town’s citizens and visitors.  
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution. Doing so is not recommended as the 
Town benefits from this relationship and the adoption of the MOU is an action item in the 
Town’s LHMP. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends council approve the resolution authorizing the memorandum of 
understanding between the Colma Fire Protection District and the Town of Colma. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
B. Memorandum of Understanding 

 
 

 
 



Res 2018-__ CFPD MOU Page 1 of 2  

RESOLUTION 2018-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
COLMA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND THE TOWN OF COLMA, ARTICULATING 
THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN OF COLMA AND COLMA FIRE PROTECTION

DISTRICT IN PREPARING FOR AND RESPONDING TO DISASTERS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background and Findings.

(a) The Colma Fire Protection District (CFPD) is providing fire protection services to the Town
of Colma. 

(b) The Town of Colma Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Action C-14 is to develop a Master 
Services Agreement with the CFPD to formalize existing administrative and technical services 
relationships.  

(d) There is a benefit to the Town in improving emergency preparedness and disaster 
response. 

(e) The Town would now like to continue with the arrangement noted above and is proposing 
that the Town enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to allow the Town of Colma to 
continue its ongoing cooperative relationship with the CFPD which includes preparing for and 
responding to disasters.  

(d) The MOU has been presented to this Council for consideration. 

2. Order.

(a) The MOU, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved.

(b) The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the MOU, with any minor non-technical
changes deemed necessary by the City Attorney. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



 

Res 2018-__ CFPD MOU   Page 2 of 2   

* * * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on December 12, 2018 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text

michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text

michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text

michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text

michaellaughlin
Typewritten Text









Staff Report re Janitorial Maintenance Services Contract  Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\31661821.1  

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

Muneer Ahmed, Associate Engineer 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Janitorial Services Contract 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
WITH BAY CONTRACT MAINTENANCE, INC. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff recommends the Town enter into a contract with Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. to clean 
and maintain the Town facilities for six months, with four (4) annual options to extend the 
contract. The cost of the service is $10,663.93 per month, for a total annual cost of $127,967.16. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The cost of the service is $10,663.93 per month, for a total annual cost of $127,967.16. The 
monthly cost of this new contract is approximately $600.00 less per month than the Town’s prior 
contract, with an annual saving of approximately $7,200 per year.  

BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

Since 2005, the Town has contracted with Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. to perform the various 
janitorial/maintenance duties at all the Town facilities.  The contract, along with contract options, 
is due to expire at the end of December. Given changes at the various facilities along with the 
addition of a new Town Hall and the subtraction of the Town Hall Annex, staff felt it merited 
requesting proposals for janitorial services from interested contractors. 

On October 15th, 2018, staff sent a Request for Proposals (RFP) to interested janitorial 
maintenance firms in the area.  A pre-proposal meeting and walk through was conducted by staff 
on October 29th, 2018.  To qualify for and be able to submit a proposal, attendance at the pre-

Item #6



Staff Report re Janitorial Maintenance Services Contract  Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\31661821.1  

proposal meeting was mandatory. The Pre-proposal meeting was well attended, with ten (10) 
potential janitorial firms attending the meeting.  The Town received seven (7) proposals from 
contractors on November 15th, 2018. Representatives from the various Town Departments 
reviewed and scored the proposals based on competence and adherence to the RFP requirements.   
Out of the seven proposals, five proposals met the RFP qualifications. One item within the 
proposal was the cost sheet. The cost sheet was submitted in a separate sealed envelope. The 
intent of the cost sheet being separate from the proposal was two-fold, you did not want a bias 
favoring a firm based on cost and not competence, the second is the cost sheet would be scored 
and then added to the overall score of the janitorial firm, typically the proposed cost for that 
firms’ work would count for 25% of the overall score.  

Interviews with the five janitorial firms were conducted on December 3rd, 2018.   The interview 
panel included staff from the Police Department, Recreation Department, Public Works, Planning, 
and Engineering. The interview was focused on the firm’s approach towards the project, staffing, 
and experience. The interview responses counted for 25% of the overall score.  The sealed cost 
proposals were then opened and scored as stated above.   Ultimately, the panel chose Bay 
Contract Maintenance, Inc. because of their experience, expertise, and familiarity with the Town’s 
needs, in addition to their approach in utilizing sustainable practices when providing these 
services.  Of the five companies that were selected for the interview, Bay Contract Maintenance, 
Inc. was the fourth lowest bidder. A breakdown of pricing of each company who responded to 
the RFP is as follows: 

Company Annual Cost Final Ranking 

Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. $127,967.16 1 

Universal Building Services $119,904.00 2 

Frank & Grossman, Inc. $118,560.00 3 

APEX Janitorial Solutions $217,896.00 4 

No More Dirt, Inc. $105,300.00 5 

 

The 1st term of this contract is for 6 months; the reason is that it is beneficial for budgeting to 
have annual contracts with our various service contractors end at the conclusion of each fiscal 
year. Each year following this first 6 months, all annual contracts will be for a full one-year 
period. 
 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
By adopting a resolution approving the contract for janitorial maintenance services with Bay 
Contract Maintenance, Inc., the City Council will demonstrate fairness by honoring the staff 
selection process. 



Staff Report re Janitorial Maintenance Services Contract  Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\31661821.1  

Sustainability Impact 

Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. will perform the services in alignment with the Town’s Climate 
Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.   
 
Alternatives 

The following alternative option is available to City Council: 

1. Not adopt the proposed resolution approving the contract for janitorial maintenance 
services with Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. and direct the City Manager to prepare 
another Request for Proposal for janitorial maintenance services. 

 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving the contract for janitorial 
maintenance services with Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
B. Contract 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2018-__, Janitorial Maintenance Services Contract Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\31661820.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR JANITORIAL 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES WITH BAY CONTRACT MAINTENANCE, INC. 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) On October 15, 2018, the Town issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for janitorial
maintenance services. 

(b) At a pre-proposal meeting held on October 29, 2018, ten (10) potential janitorial firms 
attended. 

(c) Subsequently on November 15, 2018, the Town received seven (7) proposals from 
interested firms. 

(d) The contract was competitively bid in accordance with the Town’s Purchasing Ordinance, 
and based on that process, including oral interviews, staff is recommending that the contract be 
awarded to Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. 

2. Order.

(a) The contract between the Town of Colma and Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc., a copy of
which is on file with the City Clerk, is approved by the City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, with 
such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and the City 
Attorney. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res. 2018-__, Janitorial Maintenance Services Contract Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\31661820.1  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on December 12, 2018 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

John Irish Goodwin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez       

Voting Tally      

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

 



















































Staff Report re FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (AB1600)  Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (AB 1600) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council make the following motion: 

MOTION ACCEPTING THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 AND AUTHORIZING A COPY TO BE POSTED ON THE TOWN’S 
WEBSITE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

State law requires any local agency that imposes development impact fees to prepare an annual 
report providing specific information about those fees.  Therefore, in accordance with the 
provision of the California Government Code, Section 66006(b), this Development Impact Fee 
Report for the Town of Colma is being filed accordingly for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 

As of 2017-18, the Town’s only development impact fee is the Housing Impact Fee and therefore 
will comply with AB 1600 requirements, with the acceptance and posting of this report. For 
purposes of completeness and thoroughness, the report also includes information regarding the 
Park In-Lieu Fee and the Housing In-Lieu Fee, which are both exempt from the Mitigation Fee 
Act.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This is for reporting purposes and does not have a fiscal impact. However, noncompliance may 
result in penalties and returning of funds. 

BACKGROUND 

Development impact fees are charged by local governmental agencies in connection with 
approved development projects.  The purpose of these fees is to defray all or a portion of the 
cost of public facilities related to the development projects, implementing the projects’ “fair share” 
of the cost of the capital improvements project consistent with the general plan.  The legal 

Item #7



Staff Report re FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (AB1600)  Page 2 of 4 

requirement for enactment of a development impact fee program are set forth in Government 
Code Sections 66000-66025 (the “Mitigation Fee Act”), the bulk of which was adopted in 1987 as 
AB 1600.    

The Mitigation Fee Act regulates how public agencies collect, maintain and spend impact charges 
and fees imposed on developers for the purpose of defraying costs of public facilities. The Act 
includes requirements for accounting, expending and reporting charges, fees and related interest 
earning. 

The Town collects the following types of fees in connection with development:  

 Date of Adoption Ordinance No. Fee authorized 

 March 14, 2006 641 Park Land Dedication (Park In-Lieu) 
  September 28, 2016 639 Housing In-Lieu Fee 
   Housing Impact Fee 

The Housing Impact Fee is the only fee that is subject to annual reporting under the Mitigation 
Fee Act.  The Park In-Lieu fee is classified as a "Quimby Act" fee (Government Code §§ 66477) 
and is expressly excluded from the Mitigation Fee Act per Section 66000(b).  The Town’s 
inclusionary (affordable) housing requirement for for-sale residential development provides 
developers’ a voluntary option to pay the Housing In-Lieu Fee (CMC Section 5.12.040).1  As such, 
the Housing In-Lieu Fee is not an exaction and is not subject to the Mitigation Fee Act.  (616 
Croft Ave., LLC v. City of West Hollywood, 3 Cal.App.5th 621, 630 (2016).)  Both the Park In-Lieu 
Fee and the Housing In-Lieu Fee are included in this report for informational purposes only and 
are not subject to annual reporting requirements under the Mitigation Fee Act. 

This Annual Report must also be reviewed by the City Council at a regularly scheduled public 
meeting. In addition, notice of the time and place of the meeting shall be mailed at least 15 days 
prior to the meeting to any interested party who files a written request with the local agency. No 
such requests were made at the time of this report. The attached annual report consists of 
Attachment A that presents the revenues, expenditures, and fund balances for the Housing 
Impact Fee. 

ANALYSIS 

As required by the Mitigation Fee Act, impact fees must be segregated from the General Fund 
and accounted for in special revenue funds. Government Code Section 66006 requires that the 
City make available to the public information regarding development impact fees for each fund 
within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year: 

• A brief description of the fee and the fund into which the fee was deposited; 
• The amount of the fee; 
• The associated fund's beginning and ending balances for the fiscal year; 
• The total amount of fees collected, and interest earned; 

                                           

1 The City Council amended CMC Chapter 5.12 on November 28, 2018. The changes will take effect in 

January 2019 



Staff Report re FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (AB1600)  Page 3 of 4 

• Identification of each public improvement on which impact fees were expended and the 
amount of expenditure on each improvement, including the total percentage of the cost 
of the public improvement that was funded with impact fees; 

• Identification of the approximate date by which construction of a public improvement will 
commence if the local agency determined that sufficient funds have been collected to 
complete financing on an incomplete public improvement and the public improvement 
remains incomplete (Attachment A);  

• A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from an account or fund; and 
• The amount of refunds made and any allocations pursuant to subdivision (f) of Section 

66001. 

Further, Government Code Section 66001 also requires that findings describing the continuing 
need for impact fees be made every five years specifying the intended use of any unexpended 
impact fees, regardless of whether the fees are committed or uncommitted. Failure to make such 
findings subjects the City to going through a refunding procedure.  However, five years has not 
elapsed since the Housing Impact Fee was adopted in 2016, so there is no need to make those 
additional findings at this time.  

In 2017-18, the Town collected $0 of Park In-Lieu Fees, $197,176 of Housing In-Lieu Fees and 
$0 of Housing Impact Fee.  For reference, below is the fund information for the Park In-Lieu Fee 
and the Housing In-Lieu Fee.  Information regarding the Housing Impact Fee is included in the 
FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (Attachment A).  

PARK LAND DEDICATION (PARK IN-LIEU) 
Balance at 7/1/2017 2  $ 163,664 

   
2017-18 Fee Revenues   0.00 

   

2017-18 Capital Spending/Encumbrance Project Budget 
Actual 

Spending 

Sterling Park Playground Improvement (944)  163,664  26,871 

   
Interfund Transfers   0 

   
Balance at 6/30/2018  $ 136,793 

 

HOUSING IN-LIEU FEE 
Balance at 7/1/2017  $ 0 

   
2017-18 Fee Revenues 2   197,176 

   

2017-18 Capital Spending/Encumbrance Project Budget 
Actual 

Spending 

None  0  0 

   

                                           

2 Fees are from the subdivision of land for the new residences on B Street. 



Staff Report re FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report (AB1600)  Page 4 of 4 

Interfund Transfers   0 

   
Balance at 6/30/2018  $ 197,176 

 

This report meets the requirements to comply with the Mitigation Fee Act. 

Reasons for the Recommended Action 

Receipt of this report complies with the Mitigation Act.  

 
Council Adopted Values 
 
By accepting and publishing this report on the Town’s website, the Town is showing its 
commitment to being transparent and accountable in its use of development impact fees. This is 
in alignment with the fairness and responsibility attributes of the City Council adopted value-
based code of conduct.  

Alternatives 

1. Make alternations to the report for understandability. Please note, the amounts cannot 
be altered. 

2. Direct Staff to post the report in additional public locations. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council receive and file the report.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report 

 



DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018 

FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report Page 1 of 1 
December 12, 2018 City Council Meeting 

This report provides an overview and summarized information on the Town’s Development Impact Fees 

for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018.  

HOUSING IMPACT FEE

FEE DESCRIPTION:  The Housing Impact Fee is required for-rent residential development of five or more 
units and for non-residential/commercial development over 5,000 square feet (CMC Sections 5.12.050 
and 5.12.060).  In accordance with CMC Section 5.12.010, monies deposited in the Housing Fund along 
with any interest earnings on such monies shall be used solely to increase and improve the supply of 
housing affordable to households of moderate-, low- and very low-income households in the Town. 

FEE AMOUNT:  The impact fees can be found in Subchapter 1.10 of the Colma Administrative Code, 
Master Fee Schedule, and are listed below for each of the different types of development. 

Residential Use Fee per Square Foot of Net 
New Floor Area 

Single Family Detached Home $10.00 

Townhouses, Duplexes and Triplexes $ 15.00 

Apartments and Condominiums $ 15.00 

Non-Residential Use 

(Only applies to developments over 5,000 sf) 

Fee per Square Foot of Net 
New Floor Area 

Hotel $5.00 

Retail, Restaurants and Services $5.00 

Office, Medical Office and Research and Development Uses $5.00 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning Balance (as of 7/1/2017) $ 0 

2017-18 Fee Revenues 0 

Interest 0  

2017-18 Capital Spending/Encumbrance Project Budget 
Actual 

Spending 

None 0 0 

Interfund Transfers 0 

Refunds made from surplus fees and amount of 
any allocations made 

0 

Ending Balance (as of 6/30/2018) $ 0 

APPROXIMATE DATE THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT WILL COMMENCE: 
No construction commencement date has been identified due to insufficient funds collected. 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: HEART Loan Page 1 of 6 

12/12/18 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Laughlin AICP, City Planner 

Christopher Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: HEART Loan Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
HOUSING ENDOWMENT AND REGIONAL TRUST OF SAN MATEO COUNTY (HEART) FOR 
THE TOWN TO LEND ITS UNCOMMITTED HOUSING FUNDS TO HEART.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item is for the Town Council to consider a loan agreement between the Town of Colma and 
the Housing Endowment and Regional Trust of San Mateo County (HEART). The Town would 
lend HEART approximately $225,000.00 of uncommitted affordable housing development 
impact fees. HEART would use the loaned funds for the purpose of initiating affordable housing 
projects throughout San Mateo County. Under the proposed agreement, the Town has 
expressed a requirement that funds be used for projects located in Northern San Mateo County, 
including Colma, Daly City, South San Francisco, Pacifica and Brisbane. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Town will generate revenue by participating in this loan agreement. HEART will pay the 
Town an interest rate comparable to what the funds would be earning if they were deposited in 
the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Normally, the Town would invest these funds with 
LAIF, or a similar fund, while they remained uncommitted. Therefore, the Town will not lose 
earned interest while the funds are loaned to HEART.   

Item #8



Staff Report re: HEART Loan   Page 2 of 6 

12/12/18 

BACKGROUND 
 
Nexus Study and Development Fees 
 
Several years ago, the Town of Colma participated with other San Mateo County jurisdictions in 
preparing an affordable housing nexus study, entitled the 21 Elements Grand Nexus Study. The 
study quantifies the impact of the development of market rate housing and commercial 
development on affordable housing needed for workers which support market rate 
development.  This study was prepared in response to several successful legal actions by the 
development community which questioned the ability of local jurisdictions to require a 
percentage of affordable units in market rate rental developments without demonstrating a 
connection, or Nexus, between new development and the housing affordability.  
 
The Town of Colma adopted the Nexus Study prepared for Colma, and adopted the following 
fees which apply to the development of 5 or more units: 
 

• Single-Family Residential: $10/sq.ft. 
• Multi-Family Residential: $15/sq.ft. 

 
In addition, the City Council adopted a fee of $5/sq.ft. for new commercial development. Fully 
affordable projects or projects which provide affordable units are exempt from paying the fee. 
Affordable units (20%) can still be required as part of the development of 15 or more units, or, 
if the developer chooses to build them with or without a density bonus in a project of less than 
15 units. Since the enactment of the fees, approximately $165,000.00 has been collected for 
the homes being developed on B Street.  The Town anticipates an additional $60,000.00 in fees 
from the developer of the medical office building on El Camino Real. These funds are required 
to be used by the Town for the development of affordable housing.  Staff anticipates that the 
Town will collect less than $500,000 in fees within the next ten years, considering the lack of 
available land in the Town.  This amount of money is not sufficient to acquire property and 
develop units, but would be beneficial to a developer in offsetting development or pre-
development costs to create affordable units.  
 
Use of Funds as a Loan 
 
Since the Town has little developable land and has not implemented housing programs to utilize 
the funds, staff has had conversations with HEART on ways to utilize the funds, including 
loaning the money to HEART. HEART is a nonprofit joint power authority (JPA) created by the 
County of San Mateo and twenty cities, including the Town of Colma, in the County as a 
public/private partnership to create more affordable housing opportunities in San Mateo County. 
HEART’s mission is to meet critical housing needs in San Mateo County by raising both public 
and private funds. HEART makes loans to non-profit and for-profit organizations and 
educational institutions for the purpose of developing, preserving, acquiring and rehabilitating 
affordable housing.     

Currently, the San Mateo County Department of Housing has lent HEART five million dollars. 
One loan was for $3.5 million for land acquisition.  This loan has been repaid, so the money is 
available to lend out again. Numerous other jurisdictions in San Mateo County have expressed 



Staff Report re: HEART Loan   Page 3 of 6 

12/12/18 

an interest in lending HEART money. These include the Cities of Burlingame, San Mateo, Menlo 
Park, Millbrae, San Bruno, and the Town of Portola Valley. 

HEART is convening a group in the near future to work on the Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA) credit sharing pilot for cities that make funds available for use in other 
jurisdictions. This group will work on two proposals: the first is to suggest to the State 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) how it can give cities that make 
funds available recognition for their support during the current RHNA cycle. The second will be 
a plan to formalize a credit sharing or trading system in the next RHNA cycle.  

Staff has identified the following benefits the Town may derive from a possible loan to HEART: 
 

• Elimination of administrative costs to the Town in trying in administer a loan to a 
developer directly. 

 
• It allows for the leveraging of greater capital for use by a developer through HEART 

than with the limited funds the Town collects.  
 

• It creates a positive reportable action to the State Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) in the annual housing report. 

 
• While not directly providing credit of units for the Town’s Regional Housing Needs 

Assessment (RHNA) number, it is hoped that the State will take notice of this type of 
collaborative approach and allow the use of loans to satisfy RHNA requirements in future 
housing element cycles.  The Town of Colma has satisfied its RHNA requirement of 59 
units for the reporting period of 2015-2023 with the building of the Veteran’s Village 
project, and the Town’s RHNA requirement for 2023-2031 is unknown.  Additional units 
built during the reporting period do not carry over, and monies collected during this 
reporting period must be spent within 5 years.  Even if the money was directed to a 
shovel-ready project, the Town would not get credit for units until after 2023. So, at this 
time, the funds can be better used to help a North San Mateo County jurisdiction 
produce affordable units.  

 
• It allows the Town to report use of the funds for affordable housing purposes to satisfy 

the requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act. 
 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Use of the Funds by HEART 
 
HEART would use the loaned funds for the purpose of initiating affordable housing projects 
throughout San Mateo County. Under the proposed agreement, the Town has expressed a 
preference that funds be used for projects located in Northern San Mateo County, including 
Colma, Daly City, South San Francisco, Pacifica and Brisbane. Further, development agreements 
and other Town development approvals may specify certain locations for use of development 
fees. The agreement notes that HEART will ensure that such fees are used in a manner 
consistent with any such limitation.  



Staff Report re: HEART Loan   Page 4 of 6 

12/12/18 

 
Use of the Funds by the Town 
 
As explained above, the Town does not have a foreseeable opportunity to use these funds. 
However, in the event an affordable housing development opportunity arises in the Town while 
the funds are committed to HEART, the project developer would be able to access funds from 
HEART. The Town would not be committing Town funds for predevelopment to a project that 
has not gone through the public approval process. Ultimately, HEART is only borrowing the 
funds for a defined period of time and the Town will still have the opportunity to use its funds 
within the Town, and, through the agreement, have the ability to utilize and leverage funds 
from other jurisdictions for a project in the Town.  
 
Mitigation Fee Act 
 
Under the Mitigation Fee Act, Gov’t. Code §§ 66000 et seq., each development fee must be 
deposited in a separate capital facilities account and may be expended only for the purposes for 
which it was collected. For all unexpended fees, the agency must make findings every five years 
that (1) demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the unexpended balance and the 
purpose for which the fee was charged; (2) identify the sources and funding for any as-yet 
uncompleted public improvements; and (3) designate the approximate date the agency expects 
the funding for uncompleted improvements to be deposited in the account. § 66001(d)(1). The 
Act provides that “if the findings are not made as required by [the Act], the local agency shall 
refund the moneys in the account” to the current owners of the properties for which the fees 
were paid. § 66001(d)(2). 
 
The loan to HEART, and their subsequent loaning of funds for the development of affordable 
housing will allow the Town to report that the funds are being appropriately used under the 
Mitigation Fee Act. Affordable housing is a regional issue that crosses the borders of cities in 
San Mateo County. In order to help alleviate this issue, cities impose affordable housing impact 
fees, commercial linkage fees, inclusionary housing in-lieu fees, and other housing fees, for the 
purpose of building affordable housing.  
 
As mentioned above, the Town has accumulated approximately $165,000.00 from the Tealdi 
project and anticipates about $60,000 in fees from the El Camino Real medical office 
development. The Town does not have an affordable housing project planned at this time in 
which to place these funds, and therefore is interested in lending the funds to HEART. HEART 
has established the Municipal Leveraging Fund (MLF) to utilize idle and uncommitted Town 
funds in the short term to help initiate and provide predevelopment loans to housing projects 
across San Mateo County. HEART proposes to borrow Colma’s funds for 3 years from the Town. 
If both parties agree, the loan may be extended for two additional one-year periods. 
 
Revenue Generation 
 
HEART will pay the Town an interest rate comparable to what the funds would be earning if 
they were deposited in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Normally, the Town would 
invest these funds with LAIF, or a similar fund, while they remained uncommitted. Therefore, 
the Town will not lose earned interest while the funds are loaned to HEART.   
 



Staff Report re: HEART Loan   Page 5 of 6 

12/12/18 

In its eleven-year history, HEART has never made a loan to a development project that has 
failed resulting in loses to HEART. Although HEART plans to continue its rigorous project 
underwriting, it also plans to maintain a reserve (First Loss Reserve) of its own funds to ensure 
the Town does not incur losses in the event a project were to ever fail. As the MLF fund grows, 
HEART proposes to increase the amount of the reserve and seek additional first loss funds from 
corporations and foundations, or other guarantee funds to ensure the security of cities funds 
though the First Loss Reserve.  
  
Third Party Law Firm Memo 
 
In order to assess the legality and feasibility of whether HEART can borrow those uncommitted 
affordable housing funds from cities and direct them to projects throughout the County that are 
ready for development, HEART asked the law firm of Goldfarb & Lipman LLP, as an unbiased 
third-party, to prepare a memo regarding this issue. Specifically, HEART asked if the cities are 
legally allowed to provide these fees to HEART to finance affordable housing within the County 
but outside of the Town limits. 
 
Goldfarb-Lipman conducted a review of using a city’s housing funds outside of the jurisdiction in 
which the fees were collected and has found it to be legally permissible. The legal memo’s 
findings were that HEART, as a JPA, is uniquely situated to utilize resources from cities with 
unspent affordable housing funds and direct them to projects throughout the County that are 
ready for development. As such, HEART may spend funds borrowed from a city on affordable 
housing projects outside that city/jurisdiction. In the process of lending these funds, each city 
must review its authorizing resolution or ordinance to see if there are any limitations placed on 
the use of those funds. 
 
After receiving the legal memo from Goldfarb-Lipman, HEART approached the town of Colma 
regarding borrowing these uncommitted affordable housing funds from the Town in order to 
direct them to projects in the Northern County that are ready for development. 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it 
considers how to best use and leverage affordable housing impact fees to accelerate the 
production of affordable housing in San Mateo County. 

Sustainability Impact 
 
The proposal may indirectly benefit the environment since it allows for the creation of needed 
affordable housing in San Mateo County.  Additional affordable housing would likely reduce 
commuting by workers who currently live outside of the region, thereby lowering GHG 
emissions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report re: HEART Loan   Page 6 of 6 

12/12/18 

Alternatives 
 
The City Council could choose not to loan housing funds to HEART. This alternative means that 
funds would be held by the Town until the Town considers how the funds can be spent within 
the next five years to produce affordable housing.  This alternative is not recommended since the 
funds can be leveraged to produce more affordable housing in the County.  
 
CONCLUSION 

Lending these uncommitted housing funds to HEART will enable the Town to not only use the 
housing funds for their intended purpose within the Town and be the first Jurisdiction in the 
County to demonstrate regional leadership by allowing its funds to be used in other areas of the 
County to address the regional affordable housing crisis.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a Loan Agreement to lend the Town’s uncommitted housing funds to HEART for the 
purpose of initiating affordable housing projects throughout San Mateo County. The draft of the 
Loan Agreement is attached. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Draft Loan Agreement 

 



Res 2018-__, HEART Page 1 of 2 
25977.00110\31302486.1

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 
WITH HOUSING ENDOWMENT AND REGIONAL TRUST OF SAN MATEO COUNTY 

(HEART) FOR THE TOWN OF COLMA TO LEND ITS UNCOMMITTED HOUSING FUNDS 
TO HEART 

The Town Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows: 

1. Background

a) The Town imposes an affordable housing impact fee and commercial linkage fees as
development impact fees to address the increased demand for affordable housing
created by new residential and non-residential development.

b) The Town currently holds and is soon anticipating approximately $225,000.00 in
uncommitted funds for the purpose of providing affordable housing.

c) However, since the Town has little developable land to generate fees, the amount of
fees collected is insufficient to acquire land for or to develop affordable housing.

d) Staff recommends that the Town enter into an agreement with the Housing Endowment
and Regional Trust of San Mateo County (HEART), for the Town to lend its uncommitted
housing funds to HEART to fund affordable housing projects in the Northern County.

e) HEART is a nonprofit joint powers authority (JPA) created by the County of San Mateo
and twenty cities, including the Town of Colma, in the County as a public/private
partnership to create more affordable housing opportunities in San Mateo County.

f) The Town of Colma wishes to delegate authorization to execute this agreement any
amendments or extensions thereto.

2. Order

a) The City Council does hereby authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an
agreement, in substantially the form and content of Attachment A, for the Town to lend
its uncommitted housing funds to HEART.

b) The City Council does hereby authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to execute
and extensions or amendments to the agreement, subject to review by the City
Attorney.

********** 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



 

 

Res 2018-__, HEART  Page 2 of 2  
25977.00110\31302486.1  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-_ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on December 12, 2018, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 



1 

LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HOUSING ENDOWMENT AND REGIONAL 

TRUST OF SAN MATEO COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF COLMA 

This Loan Agreement, deemed effective ______________ ___, 2018 (“Effective Date”), 

is made and entered by and between the Housing Endowment and Regional Trust of San Mateo 

County, a joint powers agency (“HEART”), and The Town of Colma (“City”) for the purpose of 

HEART borrowing certain housing funds from the Town in the amount of 

____________________________ dollars ($______________), in order to further the 

development of affordable housing in the County of San Mateo. HEART and the City shall be 

referred to collectively as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party” herein.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Colma will not be able to contribute to the attainment of State 

housing goals or to retain a healthy environment without additional affordable housing and no 

single housing program will be sufficient to meet the housing need; and 

WHEREAS, Federal and State funds for the construction of new affordable housing are 

insufficient to fully address the problem of affordable housing within the Town of Colma. Nor has 

the private housing market provided adequate housing opportunities affordable to Moderate-, 

Low-, and Very Low-Income Households; and 

WHEREAS, a lack of new Inclusionary Units will have a substantial negative impact on 

the environment and economic climate because (i) housing will have to be built elsewhere, far 

from employment centers and therefore commutes will increase, causing increased traffic and 

transit demand and consequent noise and air pollution; and (ii) Town businesses will find it more 

difficult to attract and retain the workers they need; and 

WHEREAS, because affordable housing is in short supply within the Town of Colma, 

employees may be forced to live in less than adequate housing within the Town of Colma, pay a 

disproportionate share of their incomes to live in adequate housing within the Town of Colma, or 

commute ever-increasing distances to their jobs from housing located outside the Town of Colma. 

These circumstances harm the City’s ability to attain goals articulated in the Town of Colma’s 

General Plan and strain the Town of Colma’s ability to accept and service new market-rate housing 

development; and 

WHEREAS, housing is a regional issue and supporting the development of affordable 

housing projects through HEART in North San Mateo County will benefit the residents of the 

Town of Colma who may apply to live in such affordable housing, and employees in the Town of 

Colma may apply to live in such affordable housing at rents that are proportionate to their income, 

and will continue to be close to their work in the Town of Colma; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Colma has to date accumulated funds from impact fees 

(“Housing Funds”) to create affordable housing; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Colma has adopted affordable housing impact fees and 

commercial linkage fees to address the increase in demand for affordable housing created by new 

residential and non-residential development, and the Town of Colma finds that expenditure of such 

Attachment B



 

 2  

   

 

funds anywhere within the County of San Mateo, including outside the limits of the Town of 

Colma, satisfies the purposes and requirements of said fees; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Colma has adopted an inclusionary ordinance that allows 

developers to pay an “in-lieu fee” as an alternative to constructing affordable units on site. Between 

the time that funds are collected and applied to an affordable housing project in Colma, as specified 

in the Town’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, the Town finds that the funds can be used to 

further the development of  affordable housing projects in the northern County of San Mateo, 

including outside the limits of the Town of Colma, rather than solely holding the funds in a deposit 

account; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Colma has collected affordable housing fees from developers as 

required by specific conditions of approval for the purpose of creating affordable housing, and the 

Town of Colma has made a finding that lending money to affordable housing projects in the 

northern County of San Mateo, including outside the limits of the Town of Colma, is generally 

consistent with the purpose and requirements of the Town’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance and 

the need to address affordable housing; and  

 WHEREAS, HEART is a joint powers authority ("JPA") formed among the County of 

San Mateo and twenty cities—including the Town of Colma—located in the County (collectively, 

the "Member Agencies") for the purpose of creating and preserving affordable housing; 

WHEREAS, HEART makes loans to non-profit and for-profit organizations and 

educational institutions for the purpose of developing, preserving, acquiring and rehabilitating 

affordable housing in the County of San Mateo; and  

WHEREAS, HEART will use the City’s funds on a short-term basis for three to five years 

to finance the development of affordable housing in the Northern San Mateo County; and 

WHEREAS, HEART will repay the City and the City will be able to use its housing funds 

in order to finance projects within the City after the term of the loan; and 

WHEREAS, this will enable the City to use the housing funds for the development of 

affordable housing in the area, which will help towards meeting the housing need, while still 

maintaining and following all original fund purposes; and 

WHEREAS, HEART has access to funds from many sources and may assist an affordable 

housing project in the City in an amount far above the funds the City lends to HEART during the 

term of the loan and beyond; and 

WHEREAS, HEART has established the Municipal Leveraging Fund for borrowing 

housing funds from municipalities, capitalized it with $1 million of its own funds, and is seeking 

additional private sector contributions to the fund; and  

WHEREAS, HEART wishes to borrow from the Town of Colma, and the Town of Colma 

wishes to extend to HEART, a loan (the “Loan”) from the Town of Colma’s Housing Funds in the 

amount of ____________________________ dollars ($______________) to support HEART’s 

development of affordable housing in the Northern County of San Mateo; and  



 

 3  

   

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises and obligations, the 

Parties hereby agree as follows:  

TERMS OF LOAN 

1. Town of Colma Loan of Funds to HEART.  

a. The Parties agree that the recitals herein are true and correct and that the Town of 

Colma agrees to lend to HEART an amount up to ____________________________ dollars 

($______________) (“Loan Amount”).   

b. HEART may withdraw any amount not to exceed the Loan Amount (“Withdrawn 

Amount”) with at least thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to the Town of Colma at any time up until 

the Repayment Date described in Section 2.a.  At its discretion, HEART may elect to draw the 

Withdrawn Amount in up to three (3) partial payments, in no event shall the sum of all such partial 

payments exceed the Loan Amount.  

c. HEART acknowledges and agrees that by the Town of Colma lending said funds 

to HEART, the Town of Colma does not assume any liability, obligation, or duty whatsoever with 

respect to HEART operations, liabilities, business, or transactions. 

d. The Town of Colma acknowledges that the Municipal Leveraging Fund makes 

funding commitments to housing projects for terms of two (2) to five (5) years and that the liquidity 

of the Fund fluctuates depending on lending activity. Therefore, the Town of Colma acknowledges 

that the Loan Amount, whether withdrawn or not, must be committed to HEART through the 

Repayment Date as defined herein.  

e. For each project HEART funds with the Loan, HEART will provide Town of 

Colma with a written report and data demonstrating how the project addresses affordable housing 

issues in and around the Town of Colma, in order for Town of Colma to satisfy requirements of 

the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov. Code, § 66000 et seq.) or other reporting requirements tied to the 

funds used. The report shall be delivered to Town of Colma no later than sixty (60) days of when 

the project is funded.    

2. Terms of Repayment; Interest.  

a. HEART shall only repay to the Town of Colma the Withdrawn Amount, plus 

interest as described in Section 2.c, herein no later than the “Repayment Date,” which shall be 

three (3) years from the Effective Date, on ____________ ___, 20__, unless extended as described 

in Section 2.b. 

b. The Repayment Date, at the request of HEART and the consent of the Town of 

Colma, may be extended for two (2) additional one (1)-year terms upon written agreement by both 

Parties. HEART must notify Town of Colma at least 90 days prior to Repayment Date in writing 

of its interest to extend the Loan term. The Repayment Date will automatically be extended upon 

such notice unless the Town of Colma notifies HEART in writing, within 30 days of HEART’s 

notice, that the Town of Colma is electing to receive repayment of any Withdrawn Amount plus 

any interest due.  



 

 4  

   

 

c. Interest shall only be paid on the Withdrawn Amount (“Loan Interest”) and shall 

be paid when the Withdrawn Amount is repaid. In the event the Loan is drawn over two (2) or 

three (3) partial payments as provided in Section 1.b, each draw’s interest shall be calculated 

separately based on the date of said draw. The Loan Interest shall be calculated on a dollar-day 

basis according to the sum of the following calculation:  

(Principal x Daily Interest Rate) - LAIF’s Administrative Costs (prorated LAIF quarterly costs)  

Where “Principal” is the Withdrawn Amount or partial draw thereof as described herein; 

“Daily Interest Rate” is the gross earnings for the respective day as reported in the Local Agency 

Investment Fund (“LAIF”) as published by the State of California; “LAIF’s Administrative Costs” 

are the administrative costs charged by the Local Agency Investment Fund, which are assessed 

each quarter and deducted from quarterly earnings prior to interest posting. 

d. In the event the Withdrawn Amount, along with any and all Loan Interest owed 

pursuant to Section 2.c, are not repaid by the Repayment Date, any such amounts that remain 

outstanding shall accrue interest at the rate specified by law for prejudgment interest. 

3.  Restrictions on Use of Funds 

 

The Town of Colma’s requirement for HEART’s use of the Loan is that any Withdrawn 

Amounts shall be used to fund projects located in Northern San Mateo County, including Colma, 

Daly City, South San Francisco, Pacifica, San Bruno, and Brisbane.  

 

4. Loan Security/Cash Reserve 

 

a. The Withdrawn Amount(s) shall be deposited in HEART’s Municipal Leveraging 

Fund. 

b. As security, HEART’s initial $1 million contribution to capitalize the Municipal 

Leveraging Funds shall serve as the first loss funds should any loan from the Municipal Leveraging 

Fund to affordable housing developers become a nonperforming loan. 

c. HEART shall maintain a minimum cash reserve of fifteen percent (15%) of total 

deposits into the Municipal Leveraging Fund to meet repayment payment obligations.  

 

5. Default 

a. The occurrence of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" under this 

Loan Agreement: Either Party failing to duly perform, comply with, or observe any of the 

conditions, terms, or covenants of this agreement and such failure having continued uncured for 

sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice from the other Party pursuant to Section 5.b. 

b. The non-defaulting Party shall give written notice to the other Party of any Event 

of Default by specifying: (a) the nature of the event or deficiency giving rise to the default; (b) the 

action required to cure the deficiency, if an action to cure is possible; and (c) a date, which shall 

not be fewer than sixty (60) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notice or the date the 

notice was refused, by which such action to cure must be taken.  Notwithstanding the time period 



 

 5  

   

 

described in section 5.a, if the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within sixty (60) days, 

the defaulting Party shall not be in default under this Loan Agreement if it has commenced the 

cure within forty-five (45) days from receipt of the written notice described herein and is diligently 

pursuing the cure to completion. 

6. Termination 

This Loan Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon the happening of an Event 

of Default and a failure to cure said Event of Default within the applicable cure period pursuant to 

the terms of Section 5. 

7. Hold Harmless; Indemnity.  

a. HEART shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Town of Colma, its 

officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all third party claims, suits or actions of 

every kind which arise out of the performance or nonperformance of HEART’s covenants, 

responsibilities, and obligations under this Loan Agreement and which result from the negligent 

or wrongful acts of HEART or its officers, employees, or agents.  

b. Town of Colma shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend HEART, its officers, 

employees and agents from and against any and all third party claims, suits or actions of any kind 

which arise out of the performance or non-performance of the Town of Colma’s covenants, 

responsibilities and obligations under this Loan Agreement and which result from the negligent or 

wrongful acts of the Town of Colma or its officers, employees or agents.   

c. In the event of concurrent negligence of the Town of Colma, its officer or 

employees, and HEART, its officers and employees, the liability for any and all third party claims 

for injuries or damages to persons and/or property or any other loss or costs which arise out of the 

terms, conditions, covenants or responsibilities of this agreement shall be apportioned according 

to the California theory of comparative negligence. 

8. General Provisions. 

a. Waiver.  The waiver by HEART or the Town of Colma of any term, covenant or 

condition herein contained shall not be deemed to a waiver of such term, covenant or condition or 

any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained.  

b. Successors and Assigns.  The terms of this Loan Agreement shall apply and bind 

the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the Parties. 

c. Amendment to Loan Agreements.  No provision of this Loan Agreement may be 

amended or added to except by an agreement in writing signed by the Parties or their respective 

successors in interest.  This Loan Agreement shall not be effective or binding until fully executed 

by both Parties.     

d. Choice of Law.  This Loan Agreement is subject to the laws and jurisdiction of the 

State of California and any action related to the Loan Agreement shall be brought in the California 

Superior Court for the County of San Mateo.  In the event that any court action should be brought 



 

 6  

   

 

in conjunction with this Loan Agreement, it shall be subject to interpretation under the laws of the 

State of California. 

e. Independent Entities.  This Loan Agreement is by and between two independent 

entities and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, 

employee, partnership, joint venture, joint employer, or association. 

f. Authority to Execute Loan Agreement.  The Parties each warrant that they have the 

authority to execute this Loan Agreement and that all actions have occurred, and all necessary 

approvals or consents have been obtained to allow each Party to enter into this Loan Agreement. 

g. Counterparts.  This Loan Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 

the same agreement. 

h. Section Headings.  The section headings used in this Loan Agreement are for 

convenience of reference only and are not to affect the construction hereof or be taken into 

consideration in the interpretation hereof. 

i. Drafting Party.  No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be interpreted adversely 

against a Party solely because that Party was responsible for drafting that particular provision. It 

is acknowledged that representatives of each Party have participated in the drafting and negotiation 

of this Loan Agreement. 

j. Notices.  All notices provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered 

to the appropriate parties as provided below:  

 
For HEART:                                                 HEART 

Attn:  Executive Director 

2905 S. El Camino Real 

San Mateo, CA 94403 

 

With copy to: 

c/o Director Department of Housing 

County of San Mateo 

264 Harbor Boulevard, Building A 

Belmont, CA 94002     

  

For CITY/TOWN:       Town of Colma 

Attn: City Manager 

1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014-3212 

 

 



 

 7  

   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HEART and the Town of Colma have signed this Loan 

Agreement on the dates set forth below. 

 

 

 

HOUSING ENDOWMENT AND REGIONAL TRUST OF SAN MATEO COUNTY, a 

joint powers agency 

Date:  _____________________    

 

______________________________   

By:  Armando F. Sanchez 

Title:  Executive Director 

 

 

CITY/TOWN 

Date:  _____________________    

 

______________________________    

By:  _____________________ 

Title:  _____________________ 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Council Committee Assignments  Page 1 of 1 
12/12/18 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: City Council Committee Assignments for 2019 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council determine the Council Member Committee Assignments 
for 2019, and make the following motion: 

MOTION APPROVING COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS FOR 2019 AND GRANTING TO THE 
APPOINTEE DISCRETION IN VOTING ON MATTERS BROUGHT BEFORE THE 
COMMITTEE. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In addition to their primary role as Elected Officials of the Town of Colma, the City Council 
Members serve on a variety of committees that involve the direct participation of its members in 
a host of local and regional issues and organizations. It is the Town’s practice for the Council to 
review and modify committee assignments when a new Mayor is selected.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND 

After the Reorganization of the City Council, Council Members review the committee 
assignments of the previous term and consider changes. Attached is a worksheet showing the 
current committee assignments, approved by the City Council on December 13, 2017. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council determine the Council Member Committee Assignments 
for 2019, adopt a motion approving Committee Assignments for 2019 and grant to the 
appointee discretion on voting matters brought before the committee. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Council Committee Assignments 2019 Worksheet 

Item #9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Council Committee Assignments 2019 Worksheet 

Committee Name 
2018 

Primary 

2018 

Secondary 

2019 

Primary 

201 

Secondary 

Office of Emergency Services 

(EMERGENCY SERVICES COUNCIL, MEETS 

QUARTERLY 3RD THURSDAYS IN JANUARY, APRIL, 

JUNE & SEPTEMBER, AT 5:30 PM, AT THE HALL OF 

JUSTICE IN REDWOOD CITY IN JURY ASSEMBLY 

ROOM) 

Colvin del Rosario 

Colma Creek Flood District   

(MEETS QUARTERLY, 2ND TUESDAY @ 3PM IN  

MARCH, JUNE, SEPTEMBER AND DECEMBER AT 

CITY HALL, SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO) 

Fisicaro 

Peninsula Congestion Relief Alliance  - “The Alliance” 

Board of Directors member  

(6 X A YEAR, THURSDAY MORNINGS)  

Gonzalez Colvin 

C/CAG    

(2ND THURSDAY OF THE MONTH, 7PM) 
Colvin Goodwin 

League of California Cities   

(ANNUAL CONFERENCE, AND WORKSHOPS 

THROUGHOUT THE YEAR) 

All 

San Mateo County Council of Cities 

(MONTHLY DINNER AND MEETING) 

Gonzalez is 

the voting 

representative 

All Council 

Members 

can attend 

Mayor/Chamber Walks  

(SCHEDULED BETWEEN THE MAYOR, CITY 

MANAGER & CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 

APPROXIMATELY  5+ OUTINGS)  

Gonzalez 

All other 

Council 

Members 

City Representative at Colma-Daly City Chamber of 

Commerce  

(1-2 MEETINGS A YEAR, AS NEEDED) 

Gonzalez Goodwin 

Legislative Committee (C/CAG) 

(ONCE PER MONTH, ON 2ND THURSDAYS AT 5PM) 
Colvin 

ABAG Representative  

(GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETS TWICE PER YEAR 

APRIL & OCTOBER) 

del Rosario Gonzalez 

Grand Boulevard Task Force  

(MEETS 3RD WEDNESDAY, 10AM-12 NOON, MARCH, 

JUNE, SEPTEMBER, DECEMBER AT EITHER SAM 

TRANS IN SAN CARLOS OR CITY HALL IN SANTA 

CLARA)   

Goodwin Gonzalez 

Peninsula Clean Energy Board of Directors 

(MEETS 4TH THURSDAY, 6:30PM AT THE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION BUILDING IN REDWOOD 

CITY) 

Gonzalez del Rosario 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re City Selection Committee  Page 1 of 2 
12/12/18 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Council of Cities and City Selection Committee 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council make the following motion: 

MOTION CONFIRMING DESIGNATION OF THE MAYOR AS THE VOTING MEMBER FOR 
THE COUNCIL OF CITIES, DESIGNATING AN ALTERNATE VOTING MEMBER, AND 
GIVING THE VOTING MEMBER DISCRETION ON ANY AND ALL MATTERS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The San Mateo Council of Cities will meet on December 14, 2018 to elect its officers, to make 
appointments to certain Regional Boards, and to conduct other business. According to the 
Council’s bylaws, all Council Members from a city are participating members of the Council of 
Cities, but only the Mayor, or the Mayor’s alternate, is a voting member. By practice, the Mayors 
of each city are members of the City Selection Committee, which has been delegated the 
authority to make appointments to certain Regional Boards. 

This motion will confirm the designation of the Mayor as the voting member of the Council of 
Cities and its City Selection Committee, designate an alternate to the Mayor, and grant the 
voting member discretion in voting on any and all matters.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Colma City Council is a participant in the San Mateo County Council of Cities and 
the City Selection Committee. The Council of Cities meets once per month to discuss items of 
interest to the region and provide networking opportunities for elected officials from the cities 
of San Mateo County. The members of the San Mateo County Council of Cities are all of the 
elected officials from the cities in the County, as well as the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo 
County.  

Item #10



Staff Report re City Selection Committee  Page 2 of 2 
12/12/18 

The City Selection Committee meets several times per year, usually immediately before a 
Council of Cities business meeting, and elects representatives from among the group of 
interested elected officials to serve on County-wide committees and boards, such as the San 
Mateo County Transportation Authority (SMCTA), and the Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District Board. Only one designated representative from each city is on the City Selection 
Committee, usually the Mayor. The City Selection Committee meets for the sole purpose of 
voting for the elected officials who will serve on County-wide committees and to elect the 
officers to the Council of Cities for the upcoming year. 

ANALYSIS 

The bylaws of the San Mateo Council of Cities provides that each Council Member is a 
participating member of the Council, that each city shall have one vote, and that the Mayor, or 
an alternate designated by the city, is the voting member for that city.  

The proposed motion would confirm the designation of the Mayor as the Town’s voting 
representative to the City Selection Committee and would appoint an alternate as voting 
member in case of the Mayor’s absence. 

The proposed motion would also confirm that the voting member has the discretion to vote on 
any matter before the Council of Cities. The voting member may seek and hear input and 
opinions of fellow Council members, but is not bound to vote in accordance with any 
instructions from fellow council members. Attached to this staff report for discussion are a list of 
the vacant assignments and positions. 

Council Adopted Values 

This recommendation is consistent with the Vision category from the Council’s adopted values 
from the Values-Based Code of Conduct. The Mayor will vote to select committee members and 
board representatives that may have a direct impact on regional issues that are of interest to 
the Town of Colma.  

Alternative  

The alternative to giving the Mayor discretion to vote at the City Selection Committee meeting 
is to require the Mayor to vote in a manner consistent with the directions of the City Council. 
While this alternative is technically feasible, it is not a workable alternative when there are 
several potential candidates or issues to be voted on. The more candidates or issues there are 
to be voted on, the more complicated and unworkable this alternative becomes. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the proposed motion. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. List of Commission/Committee vacancies 
B. Letters of Interest 
C. Proxy Designation Form 



City Selection Committee Vacancies 

December 14, 2018 Meeting 

Commission/Committee Vacancies Seeking Appointment/Reappointment 

San Mateo County Transit 
District (SAMTRANS) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Central Cities 

1. Charles Stone, Belmont

San Mateo County Transit 
District (SAMTRANS) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Northern Cities 

1. 

San Mateo County Transit 
District (SAMTRANS) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Southern Cities 

1. Ron Collins, San Carlos

San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Central Cities 

1. Maureen Freschet, San Mateo

San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Southern Cities 

1. Carlos Romero, East Palo Alto

San Mateo County Council 
of Cities Officers Vacancies Seeking Appointment/Reappointment 

 Chairperson 1 seat 1. Glenn Sylvester, Daly City

 Vice Chairperson 1 seat 1.

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B







City of East Palo Alto           Telephone Number: (650) 853-3100 
2415 University Avenue Fax Number: (650) 853-3115 
East Palo Alto, CA 94303 

CITY OF EAST PALO ALTO

November 28, 2018 

Re: San Mateo County Transportation Authority city seat- Southern Judicial Cities Appointment 

Honorable Mayors and Council Members: 

I write to seek your support for appointment to the San Mateo County Transportation Authority (SMCTA) 
Southern Judicial Cities seat.  As past Mayor of East Palo Alto, former vice-chair of CCAG, current board 
member of Commute.org, and an active participant in Council of Cities meetings, I have grown to know and 
engage many of you in discussions of issues affecting our cities.  I feel it is vitally important that we listen to 
one another and collectively arrive at decisions that affect our cities. 

As a diverse county we must cooperate and arrive at reasoned, rational, and sustainable transportation 
decisions that address the urban and rural growth challenges we face. Given the passage of Measure W and 
reaffirmation of the State’s fuel tax, RRRA, the development of SMCTA’s next strategic plan must compre-
hensively set the blueprint for developing our transit, roadways, and non-motorized forms of transportation 
cost effectively, efficiently and equitably.   

The SMCTA will play a pivotal role in discussing, prioritizing, and leveraging our local funds to allow our cities 
to guarantee the flow of funds for transit, bike/ped, road and highway improvement projects that will help 
maintain a livable region for all of us. Among the many projects and priorities that must be balanced are the 
implementation of complete streets, shuttles, the Hwy 101 Managed Lanes Project, grade separations, 
transit operations, and TDM, to cite only a few.  All of these priorities must be considered within the context 
of a fiscally and socially equitable distribution of these limited and precious SMCTA public funds. 

I believe I can play a meaningful and effective role on the SMCTA given my present five years of service on 
ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee and my educational background at Stanford and Harvard where I 
studied urban economics, urban planning, real estate finance, and transportation studies.  I will be mindful of 
the diversity of our cities, our numerous needs, and our sometimes-divergent concerns. I will always engage 
in reasoned discourse, respectful of all positions, that seeks innovative, collaborative and truly effective 
solutions that maintain and improve our transportation options sustainably.  

Please contact me should you have any questions concerning my candidacy.  I may be reached at (650) 283-
2852 or by e-mail: cromero_ezln@yahoo.com. 

Sincerely, 

Carlos Romero, Councilmember

Mayor Ruben Abrica
Vice Mayor Lisa Gauthier

Council Members
Larry Moody
Carlos Romero
Donna Rutherford





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Updated on 12/19/2017 

TO: Sukhmani S. Purewal, Secretary 
City Selection Committee 

SUBJECT: Alternate to the City Selection Committee 

I __________________________, Mayor of the City/Town of _____________________________,  

hereby appoint Councilmember __________________________________________, to  serve as my 

alternate to the City Selection Committee meeting(s). 

In the absence of my appointee, I then appoint: (Please choose one) 

Councilmember __________________________________ to represent me 

Vice-Mayor and each Councilmember in order of seniority 

 (You must check only ONE of the following options) 

My alternate is to serve for the: 

meeting only 
               Date 

            duration of my term of office as Mayor 

I do not choose to appoint an alternate 

________________________________________   ___________________________ 
Signature of Mayor      Date 

Please return to: 
Sukhmani S. Purewal, Secretary  
City Selection Committee 
Hall of Justice, 400 County Center / CMO 105 
Redwood City, CA 94063 

Or Fax to 650 363-1916 or bring to the meeting 

If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to call me (650) 363-1802 

SAN MATEO COUNTY 
CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE 

Diane Papan, Chairperson 
Glenn R. Sylvester, Vice Chairperson

Sukhmani S. Purewal, City Selection Secretary 
400 County Center 
Redwood City, 94063 
650-363-1802 

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - 2nd Study Session, Fee Study Page 1 of 4 

December 12, 2018 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Pak Lin, Administrative Service Director 

Michael Laughlin, City Planner 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Cost of Service Fee Study 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. City Council action is not required. 
This staff report is being presented to provide information to the City Council regarding certain 
fees related to City services. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town recently held a Study Session regarding the adjustment of services fees as they 
relate to the Building, Planning and Engineering Departments.  The cost of service study was to 
identify the cost of providing various services as they relate to the above-mentioned 
departments. The City Council and members of the public were concerned about the increase in 
the proposed cost of service fees. The City Council requested that staff come back in a study 
session format and propose revisions, options or community programs that would assist the 
public, (residential and commercial communities) in reasonable costs for services rendered 
along with an outreach program to assist the public on when the fess would be adjusted and 
why we need the fees to be adjusted.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no immediate fiscal impact associated with this report. The direction provided by the City 
Council will have a future fiscal impact.  

BACKGROUND 

At the November 28, 2018 City Council meeting, staff along with the Town’s consultant, NBS, 
presented a proposed cost of service study where fees for various permit and services were 
adjusted to represent the cost to the Town for providing those services.  

Item #11



Staff Report - 2nd Study Session, Fee Study  Page 2 of 4 

December 12, 2018   

The City Council requested that staff and the consultant review the proposed charges and 
provide options and where applicable reduce the charges to an amount less than the estimated 
cost of service when that service constitutes a compliance issue. For example, permits for the 
installation of a hot water heater or roof repairs or replacement.  

ANALYSIS 

The proposed Fee Schedule that was presented in the study session on November 28, 2018 
represented 100% cost recovery on the various services that are provided to the public via the 
Building, Planning and Public Works Departments. Per the direction of the City Council, Staff has 
developed several strategies or options that can help offset the cost on specific fees with in the 
cost of service study. The Cost of Service Study (Attachment “A”) has been modified to 
represent the options with in this staff report. 

• The City Council agreed that certain services (we will refer to these items as compliance 
issues) should be discounted so as not to discourage the public from obtaining required 
permits to perform the work at hand. An example of a “Compliance issue” would be a 
permit for the replacement of a hot water heater.  Any discount must be subsidized from 
the Town’s general fund, and not from revenue from charges imposed on other 
customers. 

For example, the cost to the Town of permitting the installation of a hot water heater is 
high when compared to the cost of the hot water heater, even though it reflects the 
Town’s estimated costs in providing the permit. As a result, members of the public may 
seek to install the project without proper permitting and the expertise of the building 
inspector making sure it was properly installed to the building code.  

Staff highlighted the “Compliance Issues” within the Fee Study and has made their 
recommendations to what we think a reasonable charge should be for these services. 

• The Fee Study was assessed on a 100 per cent cost recovery, City Council requested 
what would those various line item fees be if they were reduced to a lower percentage 
of recovery. The best way to understand the gravity of the General Fund Subsidy is to 
look at it on an annual basis. The report projected that if you targeted a 100% cost 
recovery, your first year you would recover approximately $268,000.  If the Town were 
to subsidize the costs of services at 5%, 10% and 15% estimated revenue would be as 
follows:    

o 5%  subsidy, your projected cost recovery would be  $254,600 (-$13,400) 

o 10%  subsidy, your projected cost recovery would be $241,200 (-$26,800) 

o 15%  subsidy, your projected cost recovery would be $227,800 (-$40,200) 

Note: Dollar amount in the parentheses is the estimated General Fund subsidy. 

• Phasing the fee increases over the next few years was another scenario that the City 
Council wanted to review. The suggested way of phasing the annual fee increases is on 
a 75% cost recovery of the 100% fee the 1st year, 85% cost recovery of the 100% fee 
the 2nd year, 95% cost recovery of the 100% fee the 3rd year and 100% cost recovery of 



Staff Report - 2nd Study Session, Fee Study  Page 3 of 4 

December 12, 2018   

the full fee the 4th year. When looking at the columns (labeled target cost recovery) in 
the fee schedule worksheet you can see what the annual increases would be.  A simple 
example would be if a permit costs $100.00, the Town would charge only $75.00 in the 
first year, and would be subsidizing $25.00; the second year the charge for the permit 
would be $85.00, and the Town would be subsidizing $15.00; the third year the charge 
for the permit would be $95.00, and the Town would be subsidizing $5.00; the fourth 
year the customer would be responsible for the full cost of the permit at  $100.00. 

• The last option or strategy is to implement the Towns minor home repair grant program 
(Colma Administrative Code 1.06 – see attachment B). The grant program would help 
assist the Home Owner with various costs associated with the various cost of 
construction, including permitting costs.  Staff looked at this program and with some 
modifications believe that this would assist the resident in the burdening costs 
associated with home improvements. As stated, this assistance program could offset 
permitting cost as well as other regulatory fees.  All grants would be paid for from the 
City’s general fund.  

The City Council requested that Staff look at different options that could be considered and 
hopefully take some of the “sticker shock” out of the increases with in the fee schedule. One 
consideration is a hybrid of the above: 

• Keep the “Compliance Issue” fees, those reduced charges are for the good of the 
community at large. City council should review and comment if those fees are 
acceptable.  

• An option that was considered in assisting applicants with the cost of service fee 
increases was a hybrid approach; institute a residential grant program to help offset 
construction costs along with a subsidy of 5% where the Town would be looking at 
recovering 95% of the cost of service fees. We felt that this accomplished several 
things; one it assisted a residential community with the burdening costs of construction 
in hopes that this would attract more home owners to use the permitting process which 
is required by Law; and two, the 5% reduction in the various fees would also be a great 
gesture toward the commercial base in the Town of Colma.  All subsidies would be paid 
for from the Town’s general fund.   

CONCLUSION 

The increase in cost of service fees is difficult to implement, the Town wants to recover its true 
costs for providing those various services to the community and at the same time wants to ease 
the burden of rising costs to those who request those services. The objective of this Study Session 
is to review and discuss options and strategies to best suit the residential and commercial 
communities. 
 
This Study Session provides all interested parties in attendance an opportunity to comment or 
request clarification regarding any of the fees proposed prior to City Council adoption of new or 
changed fees.  
 
CITY COUNCIL VALUES 
 



Staff Report - 2nd Study Session, Fee Study  Page 4 of 4 

December 12, 2018   

By reviewing and commenting on the proposed options and strategies in developing the proposed 
cost of service study the City Council is being Fair in their approach in assisting all branches of 
the community.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Draft User Fee and Charges Schedule 
B. Colma Administrative Code 1.06 – Minor Home Repair Grant Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

1.10.120 Public Records and Copying Fees [3]

1.10.122 Document photocopying, in house [3]

a 8.5" x 14" or smaller
0.10$   0.10$   0.10$   0.10$   0.10$   

 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

b 8.5" x 17"
0.15$   0.15$   0.15$   0.15$   0.15$   

 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

c Plus hourly fee
20$   20$   20$   20$   20$   

 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

1.10.124 Document photocopying, outside
[3]

 Actual Cost 

+ $20 / hour 

 Actual Cost 

+ $20 / hour 

 Actual Cost 

+ $20 / hour 

 Actual Cost 

+ $20 / hour 

 Actual Cost 

+ $20 / hour 

 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

1.10.126 Audio cassette copy
[3]

 $  20  $  20  $  20  $  20  $  20 
 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

1.10.128 Videotape copy
[3]

 $  40  $  40  $  40  $  40  $  40 
 No Change. Not included in fee 

study 

1.10.100 Appeal and Re-consideration Fees

1.10.102 Filing fee for appeal from administrative decision

Adjacent Property Owner per request 100$   3,376$   x 500$   500$   500$   500$   

Applicant or Other Party per request 100$   3,376$   x 2,000$   2,000$   2,000$   2,000$   

1.10.104 Filing fee for request for reconsideration of City 

Council decision
Adjacent Property Owner per request 100$   4,823$   x 1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   

Applicant or Other Party per request 100$   4,823$   x 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   

1.10.200 Land Use Development Processing Fees, Planning 

Services (Flat Fees)

new Accessory Dwelling Unit per project  new 643$   482$   547$   611$   643$   

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 1 of 8

Attachment A



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

new Address Assignment per project  new 281$           211$           239$           267$           281$           

1.10.202 Administrative Use Permit per permit C  $           280 1,929$        1,447$        1,640$        1,833$        1,929$        

1.10.204

Design Review, Minor 

(New development or modifications to existing use < 

1,000 sqft or under $1,000,000 value)

per project C  $           325 2,090$        1,568$        1,777$        1,986$        2,090$        

new Landscape Plan Check Water Use per project  new 281$           211$           239$           267$           281$           

1.10.206 Sign Permit per permit C  $           382 1,407$        x 500$           500$           500$           500$           

1.10.208 Sign Review per project C  $           102 442$           x 300$           300$           300$           300$           

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 2 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

1.10.1100 Special Event Fees and Deposits

Special Event Permit per permit S  $           100 924$           x

 Social events on public or private 

property, including winter and 

spring events at 280 Metro, street 

fairs, block parties, etc 

One Time / Initial per permit x 200$           200$           200$           200$           

Recurring per permit x 100$           100$           100$           100$           

Initial deposit against Departmental Service Charges 

for a Special Event Impacting Public Property

[3]
 $           500  $           500  $           500  $                - No Change

Initial deposit against Departmental Service Charges 

for a Special Event on Private Property

[3]
 $           200  $           200  $           200  $                - No Change

Initial deposit against Departmental Service Charges 

for a Public Assembly Event

[3]
 $           500  $           500  $           500  $                - No Change

Initial deposit against Departmental Service Charges 

for a Commercial Event

[3]
 $           300  $           300  $           300  $                - No Change

1.10.205 Temporary Banner Permit per permit C  $             50 121$           x 70$             70$             70$             70$             

1.10.209 Temporary Use Permit (Tier 1) per permit C  $             50 121$           x 70$             70$             70$             70$             

 Generally for small 

commercial/sales events or 

activities such as a tool vendor 

parking lot demonstration and use 

of a cargo container for inventory 

storage during the holidays 

1.10.210 Temporary Use Permit (Tier 2) C

 Generally for larger sales events 

or activities such as Christmas tree 

or pumpkin sales in a parking lot 

etc. 
One-Time / Initial per permit  $           280 1,407$        x 1,000$        1,000$        1,000$        1,000$        

Recurring per permit  $           280 1,407$        x 500$           500$           500$           500$           

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 3 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

1.10.212 Tree removal permit C

Minor - Up to 5 trees per permit  $           474 1,929$        1,447$        1,640$        1,833$        1,929$        

Major - 6+ trees deposit  $           474 4,341$        3,256$        3,690$        4,124$        4,341$        

1.10.214 Use Permit, Home Occupation per permit C  $             50 121$           x 50$             50$             50$             50$             

1.10.216

Use Permit, Minor

(New development or modifications to existing use < 

2,000 sq ft)

per permit C  $           905 7,637$        5,728$        6,491$        7,255$        7,637$        

1.10.218 Zoning Clearance for Retail Merchandising Unit per project C  $           184 523$           x 250$           250$           250$           250$           

new Zoning Letter per project  new 1,045$        784$           888$           993$           1,045$        

1.10.220

Land Use Development Processing Fees, Planning 

Services (Deposit Against Actual Cost)

1.10.222

Design Review, Major

(New development or modifications to existing use > 

1,000 sq ft)

deposit  $       4,190 7,476$        5,607$        6,355$        7,102$        7,476$        

1.10.224 General Plan Amendment deposit  $       6,730 11,415$     8,561$        9,703$        10,844$     11,415$     

1.10.226 Lot Line Adjustment deposit  $       2,540 8,859$        6,644$        7,530$        8,416$        8,859$        

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 4 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

new Master Sign Program deposit  n/a 7,637$        5,728$        6,491$        7,255$        7,637$        

1.10.228 Parcel Map
per map, 

deposit
 $       3,950 8,151$        6,114$        6,929$        7,744$        8,151$        

1.10.230 Planned Development Plan deposit  $       4,880 7,315$        5,486$        6,218$        6,949$        7,315$        

new Stormwater Review Deposit (Preliminary) deposit  n/a 1,576$        1,182$        1,339$        1,497$        1,576$        

1.10.232 Subdivision Map
per map, 

deposit
 $       5,465 10,290$     7,718$        8,747$        9,776$        10,290$     

1.10.234

Use Permit, Major

(New development or modifications to existing use > 

2,000 sq ft)

deposit  $       4,245 7,637$        5,728$        6,491$        7,255$        7,637$        

1.10.238
Vacation or abandonment of Public Easement, 

including Street Easement
deposit  $       5,705 6,994$        5,245$        5,945$        6,644$        6,994$        

1.10.240 Variance to Zoning Regulation deposit  $       4,720 7,637$        5,728$        6,491$        7,255$        7,637$        

1.10.242 Zoning Reclassification deposit  $       5,245 9,405$        7,054$        7,994$        8,935$        9,405$        

1.10.244

City Attorney Time (the deposit is required 

whenever City Attorney time will be spent in 

processing an application, and shall be in excess of 

any other deposit or fee required, with the deposit 

determined by the level of CEQA review required for 

the application)

a
CEQA Exemptions not requiring a Major Permit or 

Major Design Review application - under 2,000 sq ft
deposit  $           250 764$           573$           649$           726$           764$           

b

CEQA Exemption requiring a Major Permit or Major 

Design Review application - 2,000 square feet and 

over

deposit  $       1,500 1,910$        1,433$        1,624$        1,815$        1,910$        

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 5 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

c
CEQA Negative Declarations, Mitigated Negative 

Declarations
deposit  $       2,000 3,820$        2,865$        3,247$        3,629$        3,820$        

d Environmental Impact Reports deposit  $       4,000 7,640$        5,730$        6,494$        7,258$        7,640$        

e Agreements - City Attorney Deposit deposit  $       2,000 -$                -$            -$            -$            -$            

1.10.250

Land Use Development Project Fees, CEQA Review 

(Deposit Against Actual Cost). The following 

deposits will be required for environmental review 

of applications through the Planning Department to 

develop property. These fees are in addition to the 

processing fees for planning or engineering services. 

The initial deposits shown below are due and 

payable upon filing an application. Additional 

deposits may be required from time to time. Any 

unused deposit will be returned to the applicant. 

The deposit for an amendment is the same as the 

fee for an initial application. The total processing fee 

will not exceed the actual, reasonable cost of 

providing the service.

1.10.252 Categorical Exemption per permit [4]  $           100 281$           211$           239$           267$           281$           

1.10.254
Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative 

Declaration

Prepared by Town
deposit [4, 5]  $       4,780 8,441$        6,330$        7,174$        8,019$        8,441$        

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 6 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Prepared by Consultant deposit [4, 6]

 Consultant 

Costs + 10% 

as an initial 

deposit to 

cover staff 

time 

-$                -$            -$            -$            -$            

1.10.256 Environmental Impact Reports deposit [4, 6]

 Consultant 

Costs + 10% 

as an initial 

deposit to 

cover staff 

time 

-$                -$            -$            -$            -$            

1.10.258
Environmental Document pursuant to a Certified 

Program (CRP)
deposit [4, 7]

 Consultant 

Costs + 10% 

as an initial 

deposit to 

cover staff 

time 

-$                -$            -$            -$            -$            

new Mitigation Monitoring deposit  new -$                -$            -$            -$            -$            

Business Registration Application Processing flat [8]  $             25 113$           x 25$             25$             25$             25$             

Support to Building Fees

new Building Permit, Residential Interior flat  new 80$             x 40$             40$             40$             40$             

new Building Permit, New Single Family Residence flat  new 80$             60$             68$             76$             80$             

new Building Permit, Residential Addition flat  new 80$             60$             68$             76$             80$             

new Building Permit, Commercial T.I. flat  new 80$             60$             68$             76$             80$             

new Building Permit, Commercial Addition flat  new 121$           90$             102$           115$           121$           

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 7 of 8



The Town of Colma

Planning - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

Full Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee Fee No. Fee Name

N
o

te
sFee Unit / 

Type

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

new Building Permit, Commercial or Multi-Residential flat  new 1,125$        844$           957$           1,069$        1,125$        

TOTAL PLANNING

[1] No fee charged

[2] 
City Attorney rate provided by Town of Colma at 

$382/hr.

[3]
Placeholder for master fee schedule. NBS did not 

evaluate.
[4] Plus $50 Document Handling Fee

[5]
Plus $2,181.25 California Department of Fish and 

Game fee.

[6]
Plus $3,029.75 California Department of Fish and 

Game fee

[7]
Plus $1,030.25 California Department of Fish and 

Game fee

[8]

Current fee reflects Planning's portion of the City's 

fee only. Current fee is listed in the Municipal Code 

and requires an Ordinance Amendment to change.

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Planning COS Scenario, Page 8 of 8



The Town of Colma

Engineering Services - User Fee Study Fiscal Year 2019

Cost of Service Estimate for Fee Related Services and Activities

75% 85% 95% 100%

1.10.400 Land Use Development Processing Fees, Public 

Works and Engineering Services
1.10.402 Grading Plan Check 50 to 2,000 CY C

a First 50 CY flat 80$             105$           78$             89$             99$             105$           

b Each additional 100 CY flat 20$             75$             56$             64$             71$             75$             

1.10.404 Grading Plan Check over 2,000 CY C

a First 2,000 CY deposit 400$           1,569$        1,177$        1,333$        1,490$        1,569$        

b Each additional 100CY deposit 2$               78$             59$             67$             75$             78$             

1.10.406 Grading Permit 50 to 2,000 CY C

a First 50 CY flat 130$           627$           470$           533$           596$           627$           

b Each additional 100 CY flat 20$             38$             28$             32$             36$             38$             

1.10.408 Grading Permit over 2,000 CY C

a First 2,000 CY deposit 530$           1,359$        1,019$        1,155$        1,291$        1,359$        

b Each additional 100CY deposit 8$               68$             51$             58$             65$             68$             

1.10.410 Improvement Plan Checking, Contracts of $10,000 or 

less
Per Project flat  $           250 418$           314$           355$           397$           418$           

1.10.412 Improvement Plan Checking, Contracts between 

$10,000 and $100,000
a Base fee at $10,000 flat 500$           452$           339$           384$           429$           452$           

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost flat 35$             5$               4$               5$               5$               5$               

1.10.414 Improvement Plan Checking, Contracts between 

$100,001 and $500,000
a Base fee at $100,000 deposit 3,650$        941$           706$           800$           894$           941$           

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit 20$             9$               6$               7$               8$               9$               

new Improvement Plan Checking, Contracts more than 

$500,000 [3]

a Base fee at $500,000 deposit 13,650$     4,390$        3,292$        3,731$        4,170$        4,390$        

Fee No. Fee Description

Fee 

Type/Uni

t N
o

te
s

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target Notes

Recovery 

Target

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com DevEng&Const COS Scenario, Page 1 of 5



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee No. Fee Description

Fee 

Type/Uni

t N
o

te
s

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target Notes

Recovery 

Target

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit 20$             9$               7$               7$               8$               9$               

new Improvement Inspection, Contracts of $10,000 or 

less [3]

Per Project flat new 452$           339$           384$           429$           452$           

new Improvement Inspection, Contracts between 

$10,000 and $100,000 [3]

a Base fee at $10,000 flat new 452$           339$           384$           429$           452$           

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost flat new 23$             17$             19$             22$             23$             

new Improvement Inspection, Contracts between 

$100,000 and $500,000 [3]

a Base fee at $100,000 deposit new 2,509$        1,881$        2,132$        2,383$        2,509$        

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit new 18$             13$             15$             17$             18$             

new Improvement Inspection, Contracts more than 

$500,000 [3]

a Base fee at $500,000 deposit new 9,616$        7,212$        8,174$        9,135$        9,616$        

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit new 19$             14$             16$             18$             19$             

1.10.322 Parcel or Final Map Subdividing Property (4 lots) flat 600$           4,181$        3,136$        3,554$        3,972$        4,181$        

a Each additional lot flat 50$             209$           157$           178$           199$           209$           

b Plus recording costs (as established by County) flat Actual Cost n/a

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com DevEng&Const COS Scenario, Page 2 of 5



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee No. Fee Description

Fee 

Type/Uni

t N
o

te
s

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target Notes

Recovery 

Target

1.10.400 Public Property and Public Rights-Of-Way

1.10.402 Encroachment Permit, single residential lot driveway flat R
60$             242$           182$           206$           230$           242$           

1.10.406
Encroachment Permit, single residential lot utility cut 

by contractor in asphalt street or concrete sidewalk flat R 60$             242$           182$           206$           230$           242$           

1.10.408
Encroachment Permit, single residential lot utility cut 

by contractor in an interlocking concrete paver 

surfaced street or sidewalk

flat R 150$           347$           260$           295$           330$           347$           

1.10.410 Encroachment Permit, fence and/or landscaping in 

right-of-way (Both may be covered by same permit) flat C,R n/a 242$           x 25$             25$             25$             25$             

1.10.412 Encroachment Permit, Utility company C [5]

Annual Processing Fee flat 500$           627$           x 627$           627$           627$           627$           

Minimum Deposit Amount deposit n/a 2,509$        x 2,509$        2,509$        2,509$        2,509$        

1.10.414 Failure to give required notice under a Utility 

Company Annual Encroachment Permit
Per site, after second occurrence in 12-month period

flat 100$           209$           x 209$           209$           209$           209$           

1.10.416 Encroachment Permit, for work not included in fixed 

fee schedules where the value of the contract is less 

than $10,000
Per Project flat 140$           661$           495$           561$           628$           661$           

1.10.418 Encroachment Permit, for work not included in fixed 

fee schedules where the value of the contract is 

between $10,000 and $100,000
a Base fee at $10,000 deposit 700$           1,045$        784$           888$           993$           1,045$        

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit 50$             95$             71$             81$             90$             95$             

1.10.418 Encroachment Permit, for work not included in fixed 

fee schedules where the value of the contract is 

between $100,000 and $500,000
a Base fee at $100,000 deposit 5,200$        9,616$        7,212$        8,174$        9,135$        9,616$        

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit 30$             51$             38$             43$             48$             51$             

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com DevEng&Const COS Scenario, Page 3 of 5



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee No. Fee Description

Fee 

Type/Uni

t N
o

te
s

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target Notes

Recovery 

Target

1.10.420 Encroachment Permit, for work not included in fixed 

fee schedules where the value of the contract is over 

$500,000
a Base fee at $500,000 deposit 17,200$     29,893$     22,420$     25,409$     28,398$     29,893$     

b Each additional $1,000 of contract cost deposit 30$             60$             45$             51$             57$             60$             

Encroachment for dumpster flat new 50$             50$             50$             50$             

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com DevEng&Const COS Scenario, Page 4 of 5



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee No. Fee Description

Fee 

Type/Uni

t N
o

te
s

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity

Current Fee 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target Notes

Recovery 

Target

new Stormwater Fees [3]

Stormwater Management - Post construction 
flat C,R new 1,672$        1,672$        1,672$        1,672$        1,672$        

 County passed the work to local 

jurisdiction 

Stormwater Regulatory Inspection

a
C3 - Stormwater Mgmt. Inspection of privately 

maintained post construction treatment devices
Residential flat R new 209$           209$           209$           209$           209$           

Commercial flat C new 418$           418$           418$           418$           418$           

b C4 - Stormwater Permit Commercial Inspection flat C,R new 314$           314$           314$           314$           314$           

c Each Reinspection flat C,R new 209$           209$           209$           209$           209$           

TOTAL ENGINEERING

[3] New Fee Item

[5]
Work under the annual permit is limited to minor 

work & maintenenace related work in accordance 

with CMC§5.08.050.

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com DevEng&Const COS Scenario, Page 5 of 5



 



The Town of Colma

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

User Fee Study

PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE

75% 85% 95% 100%

I. PERMIT APPLICATION FEE Per project  $                 7  $               26 20$                22$                25$                26$                

II. BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

 $1 - $500
Minimum permit 

fee 

R
 $               25  $             235 x 50$                50$                50$                50$                

$ 500.01 to $ 2,000
Base Cost (For the 

first $500)

R
 $               48  $             274 x 50$                50$                50$                50$                

Each Add'l $100  n/a  $               13 9.78$             11.09$          12.39$          13.04$          

$ 2,001 to $ 25,000.00
Base Cost (For the 

first $2,001)

R
 $             230  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

Each Add'l $1000
 n/a  $               22 16.59$          18.80$          21.01$          22.11$          

$ 25,001 to $ 50,000
Base Cost (For the 

first $25,001)

C, R
 $             525  $             978 734$              831$              929$              978$              

Each Add'l $1000
 n/a  $               67 50.47$          57.20$          63.93$          67.29$          

$ 50,001 to $ 100,000
Base Cost (For the 

first $50,001)

C, R
 $             832  $          2,660 1,995$          2,261$          2,527$          2,660$          

Each Add'l $1000
 n/a  $                 6 4.69$             5.32$             5.95$             6.26$             

$100,001 to $500,000
Base Cost (For the 

first $100,001)

C
 $             999  $          2,973 2,230$          2,527$          2,825$          2,973$          

Each Add'l $1000
 $                 5  $                 2 1.76$             2.00$             2.23$             2.35$             

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 1 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

$500,001 to $1,000,000

Base Cost (For the 

first $500,001)

C

 $          3,086  $          3,912 2,934$          3,326$          3,717$          3,912$          

Each Add'l $1000
 $                 5  $                 4 3.05$             3.46$             3.87$             4.07$             

$1,000,000 and over
Base Cost (For the 

first $1,000,001)

C
 $          3,086  $          5,947 4,460$          5,055$          5,649$          5,947$          

Each Add'l $1000
 $                 5  $                 6 4.46$             5.05$             5.65$             5.95$             

III. BUILDING ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN CHECK FEES 
Processing Fee + 

Actual Cost

Town Processing Fee (Valuation):

 $1 - $500 Flat R  $               16  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

$ 500.01 to $ 2,000.00 Flat R  $               31  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

$ 2,000.01 to $ 25,000.00 Flat R  $             149  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

$ 25,000.01 to $ 50,000.00 Flat C, R  $             341  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

$ 50,000.01 to $ 100,000.00 Flat C, R  $             540  $             313 235$              266$              297$              313$              

$100,000.01 to $500,000.00 Flat C  $             649  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

$500,000.01 to $1,000,000.00 Flat C  $          2,006  $             548 411$              466$              520$              548$              

$1,000,000.01 and over Flat C  $          2,006  $             782 587$              665$              743$              782$              

Consultant Plan Review Actual Cost

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 2 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

IV. OTHER PLAN CHECK FEES

A2 Hourly Rate for Plan Review First Hour  $               75  $             274 205$              233$              260$              274$              

Ea add'l hour  $               75  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

A3 Site Plan Review for Accessibility Compliance First 2 hours  $             150  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$               CASp certified, required 

Ea add'l hour  $               75  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

A4
Deferred Submittals (i.e.: Truss Roof Plans/ 

Calculations)
First Hour  $               75  $             274 205$              233$              260$              274$              

Ea add'l hour  $               75  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

A5
Plan Revisions (after permit issued 2 hr. minimum 

charge)
First 2 hours  $             150  $             430 323$              366$              409$              430$              

Ea add'l hour  $               75  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

A6
Repetitive/Excessive Plan Check 2 hr. minimum 

charge
First 2 hours  $             150  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

Ea add'l hour  $               75  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

V. MISCELLANEOUS & FLAT FEE PERMITS

B1 Re-Roofing- Single Family Residence Per project  $               93  $             469 x 150$              150$              150$              150$              

B4
Demolition Permit - per single structure  (does not 

include C&D Deposit)
Per project  $             111  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

B5
Temporary Office Trailers or Storage Units at 

Construction Site

Per Trailer or 

Storage Unit
 $               45  $             274 205$              233$              260$              274$              

B6

Commercial Coaches, Portable/Re-locatable 

Structures, Trailers and Manufactured Homes (not 

including Plan Review)

Per project  $             250  $             274 205$              233$              260$              274$              

B7 Sign Re-face - per cabinet, no electrical work Per project  $             163  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

B8
Sign - new cabinet, including electrical circuit (does 

not include structural support/review)
Per project C  $             163  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 3 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

B9

Windows - residential, direct replacement, no 

structural alterations required, for purpose of 

verifying Energy Code Compliance

Per project C, R  $             175  $             313 x 250$              250$              250$              250$              

B10 Change of Use Inspection Per project C  $               90  $             313 235$              266$              297$              313$              

additional fees for plan check per hour see section IV  n/a  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

B11 Solar: PVSystems

Residential - see GC 66015 (a) 1 Per project R  $             254  $             626 469$              532$              595$              626$              

B12 Solar: PVSystems- includes Plan Review Fee

Commercial - see GC 66015 (b) 1

0 - 50 kW size system Per project C  $             254  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

51KW  to 250kW Per project C  $             254  $             509 381$              432$              483$              509$              

Over 250 kW   Per project C  $             254  $             782 587$              665$              743$              782$              

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 4 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

VI. ADDITIONAL INSPECTION SERVICES

C1
Inspections outside of normal business hour (2hr. 

minimum paid at time of request)
First 2 hours  $             180  $             469 352$              399$              446$              469$              

Ea add'l hour  $               90  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

C2
Requested Inspection - prior to permit issuance (at 

Building Official's discretion)
First Hour  $               45  $             274 205$              233$              260$              274$              

Ea add'l hour  $               45  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

C3 Re-inspection Fees(at Building Official's discretion) First Hour  $               45  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

Charged separately: Inspection by California Access 

Specialist (CASp) 2 hr. minimum charge

Ea add'l 1/2 hour  $               45  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

VII. OTHER PROVISIONS

D1 Filing Appeals

Appeal of Building Official's Decision
Hourly with 

minimum deposit 

of $ 500

 $500 deposit n/a

Housing Advisory and Appeals Board
Hourly with 

minimum deposit 

of $ 500

 $500 deposit n/a

D2 Building Code Research and Written Interpretation Per hour  $               45 n/a

D3 Application for Alternate Materials and Methods
Per Hour

 $               45 n/a

D4 Permit File Research- Staff Time Per hour  $               45 n/a

D5 Permit Refund - No Work Performed Per project  n/a  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Partial Work Performed Per project  n/a  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

D6 SMIP FEES (Strong Motion Instrument Program) Per project  set by State n/a No Change. Not included in fee study

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 5 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

D7 SB1473jBSASRA Fees (Green Building Fund) Per project  set by State n/a No Change. Not included in fee study

VIII. ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES

E1 Application Fee - Electrical Per project  $                 7  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

E2 Plan Review, When Required, Miniumum 1 hour hourly  n/a  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

PER UNIT FEE SCHEDULE:

E3 Temporary Power Pole Per project  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

E4
New Circuits - Based on Number of Circuits (includes 

switches & receptacles

Up to 10 Circuits First circuit  $               23  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Each Additional 10 Circuits Per circuit  $                 6  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

E5
For the Installation, Alteration, or Relocation of Each 

Electrical Service:

600 VOLTS OR LESS
First 200 Ampere Capacity with One Meter 

Socket/Base
Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Each Additional 100 Ampere Capacity or Fraction 

Thereof
Each  $                 7  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

Each Additional Meter Socket/Base Each  $                 2  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 6 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

 OVER 600 VOLTS

First 200 KVA Capacity w/One Meter Socket/Base Each  $               48  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Each Additional 100 KVA Capacity Each  $               25  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

E6

For the Installation or Replacement of Each Motor 

(when not an integral part of a electrical appliance, 

fan, heating or cooling unit) Heater, Welding 

Machine, Kiln or Transformer.

Each  $               48  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

B13 Portable Electrical Generator - Temporary Use Per project  $               25  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

E7 For the Installation of Each stationary Generator Each C  $               24  $             313 235$              266$              297$              313$              

E8

For the Installation, Relocation, or Replacement of 

Each Fixed or Stationary Electrical Appliance, 

Including All Necessary Circuits, Receptacles and 

Switches (not listed above):
Residential-Type Appliance (wall-mounted electric 

ovens, counter-mounted cook tops, self-contained 

room, console, or through-wall type air conditioners, 

zone heaters and similar types of residential 

appliances.)

Each  $               12  $             156 x 80$                80$                80$                80$                

Commercial-Type Appliances (non-residential 

appliances not exceeding one horsepower (HP) or 

Kilowatt (KW) in rating and including, but not limited 

to medical or dental equipment, food, beverage and 

ice cream cabinets, install-hot water heaters, 

drinking fountains, laundry machines and similar 

equipment.)

Each  $               12  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

IX. PLUMBING PERMIT FEES

P1 Application Fee - Plumbing Per project  $                 7  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

P2 Plan Review, When Required, Miniumum 1 hour hourly  n/a  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

PER UNIT FEE SCHEDULE

P3 For the Repair or Replacement of each

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 7 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Waterline, Sewer Line or Drainage/Vent Piping 

System (or as determined by the Building Official)

Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Refrigerant Piping System Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

P4
For the Replacement of the Water Piping System 

within a Single Family Dwelling
Each  $               14  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

B2
Water Heater - Single Family Residence (,60 gallon 

capacity)
Per project  $               36  $             156 x 36$                36$                36$                36$                

P5
For the Replacement of a Water Heater or Water 

Storage Tank (>60 gallons) 
Each C, R  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

P6
For the Installation of a Tank-less water Heater Gas-

fired (includes gas line & exhaust vent)
Each  $               25  $             156 x 80$                80$                80$                80$                

P7
For Each Installation or Alteration of a Gas Piping 

System

From Meter to First 5 Outlets Each C, R  $               14  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Each Additional 5 Outlets Each C, R  $                 3  $               39 29$                33$                37$                39$                

P8

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Plumbing Fixture or trap.  (includes all 

necessary water, drainage or vent piping.)

Each  $               12  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

P9
For the Installation of Each Lawn Sprinkler/Irrigation 

System
Each  $               12  $             156 x 80$                80$                80$                80$                

P10 For the Installation of Each Interior Water Feature Each  $               25  $             156 x 80$                80$                80$                80$                

P11
For the Installation of Each New Domestic Water or 

Sewer Service 
Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

P12

For the Installation of Each Storm Drainage or On-

Site Retention System (Does not include review by 

Town's Engineering Department)

Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

X. MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 8 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

M1 Application Fee - Mechanical Per project  $                 7  $               78 59$                67$                74$                78$                

M2 Plan Review, When Required, Miniumum 1 hour hourly  n/a.  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

PER UNIT FEE SCHEDULE

B3
Furnace Replacement- Single Family Residence (< 

100K Btu and < 40 lineal feet of new duct)
Per project  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

M3

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Commercial Heating, Cooling Refrigeration 

Appliance. (includes all necessary electrical circuits, 

fixtures, switches receptacles, gas piping, vents or 

water piping.)
0 to 1,000,000 Btu Each  $               59  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

M4

For the Installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Boiler. (Includes all necessary electrical circuits, 

receptacles, switches, gas piping and vents - but 

does not include motors identified in E6 of the 

schedule)

0 to 1,000,000 Btu Each  $               59  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

M5

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

Other Fuel Burning Appliances not listed in this 

schedule. (includes all necessary gas piping, vents, 

electrical circuits receptacles and switches.) 

Residential Appliances (excluding Residential 

Furnace) Replacement)
Commercial Appliance

0 to 1,000,000 Btu Each  $               59  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

M6

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

Fans, exhaust fans, or make-up air units connected 

to a duct system. 
0 to 500 cfm Each  $               48  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

501 to 5,000 cfm Each  $               82  $             196 147$              166$              186$              196$              

5,001cfm and Over Each  $             117  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 9 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

M7

 For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each or Air Handler Unit, Heating or Cooling Coil or 

Element in a duct system. (includes all necessary 

electrical circuits, receptacles or switches and piping 

for cooling media.)
0 to 400,000 Btu Each  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

401,000 Btu and Over Each  $               25  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

M8

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Radiant Heating Panel Radiator or Convertor 

(including all necessary piping)
1 to 5 Devices Flat  $               25  $             156 117$              133$              149$              156$              

Each Additional 5 Devices (prorated) Each  $                 3  $             235 x 156$              156$              156$              156$              

M9

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Type I and Type II Commercial Range Hood and 

Exhaust Duct connected thereto. (includes shaft, 

electrical circuits receptacles, switches, exhaust fan 

motor and plan review)

Each C  $               59  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

M10

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each Masonry or Concrete Chimney. (includes plan 

review)

Each  $               59  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

M11

For the installation, relocation or replacement of 

each factory-built fireplace (including factory-built 

chimney, framing, electrical circuits, receptacles, 

switches an gas line.)

Each  $               59  $             235 176$              200$              223$              235$              

XI. COPYING, PRINTING AND ARCHIVES [x]

X1 Photocopying of public documents:

8.5" x 14" paper or smaller Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.10  $            0.10  $            0.10  $            0.10 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

11" x 17" paper Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.15  $            0.15  $            0.15  $            0.15 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

Larger formats - outside vendor Per sheet
 Actual Cost + 

10% 

 Actual Cost + 

10% 

 Actual Cost + 

10% 

 Actual Cost + 

10% 

 Actual Cost + 

10% 

 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

X2 Printing of Electronic Medium

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 10 of 11



75% 85% 95% 100%

Fee 

No.
Fee Description Fee Type/Unit

N
o

te
s

 Current Fee  

Ty
p

ic
al

 u
se

Fee 

Reduction 

due to 

Compliance 

Issue

 Cost of 

Service Per 

Activity 

 Notes 

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

Recovery 

Target

8.5" x 14" paper or smaller Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.02  $            0.02  $            0.02  $            0.02 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

11" x 17" paper Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

Plan Sheet - Full Size Per sheet

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

X3 Microfilming/Digital Scanning- Permit Archiving

8.5" x 14" paper or smaller Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

11" x 17" paper Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.07  $            0.07  $            0.07  $            0.07 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

Plan Sheet - Full Size Per sheet

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

X4
Plan Submittal in Electronic Format - generating hard 

copies for Permit Issuance

8.5" x 14" paper or smaller Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05  $            0.05 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

11" x 17" paper Per sheet  $                 0  $            0.07  $            0.07  $            0.07  $            0.07 
 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

Plan Sheet - Full Size Per sheet

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 $5.00 Plus 

$20.00 per 

hour 

 No Change. Not included in Fee 

Study 

TOTAL BUILDING

Notes

[1]

Note Current fee amount may differ from adopted 

fee schedule due to changes in fee structure as a 

result of this Study

[2]
Building Plan Check Fees require a Town Processing 

Fee plus the Actual Costs of Consultant review

NBS Local Government Solutions

Toll-Free: 800.676.7516  Web: www.nbsgov.com Buiding COS Scenario, Page 11 of 11



 



Minor Home Repair Grant Program Administrative Code 
(October 2002) 1-06-1 

CHAPTER ONE. ORGANIZATION, FUNCTONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subchapter Six: Minor Home Repair Grant Program

1.06.010 Scope.

a. The Town of Colma Minor Housing
Repair Grant Program has been developed 
in response to the need for the conservation 
of affordable housing, especially in the older 
and basically-sound residential 
neighborhoods of the Town. It is the 
intention of this program to provide grants 
for repairs to substandard homes for very 
low, low and moderate-income families 
within the city limits. 

b. The goals of the Grant Program are
to: 

i. Improve and preserve the
community's supply of Very Low, 
Low and Below Median Income 
Housing available at affordable 
housing costs; and 

ii. Offer options to property
owners for improving their property 
within their means. 

1.06.020 Grants.

The Town shall pay up to $1,000 per 
dwelling to each eligible applicant for eligible 
work performed under these Guidelines. The 
grant does not have to be re-paid to the 
Town if it is used in the manner authorized. 

1.06.030 Eligible Households.

The applicant must have lived in the Town of 
Colma continuously for at least 90 days prior 
to the date of the application to the 
completion of the work, the applicant must 
own the property upon which the work of 
improvement will be performed, and the 
current, adjusted gross income of the 
household must be less than the current 
income level for median income households 
in the County of San Mateo. 

1.06.040 Eligible Properties.

The dwelling must be located within the city 
limits of the Town of Colma, the area must 
be zoned for residential use, and the 
dwelling must be owner-occupied. 

1.06.050 Eligible Work.

 The following types of work are eligible for 
grant funding: 

a. Exterior work that will better the
neighborhood and which may be installed 
without a building permit, such as exterior 
painting; landscaping of the front yard; and 
installation or repair of fences, walkways, 
driveways, and retaining walls less than 
4’high; 

b. Repairs or rehabilitation that will
conserve energy or other natural resources, 
such as installation or replacement of: 

i. Ceiling or wall insulation, 
warped or inoperative windows, dual 
pane windows, and weatherproofing 
around doors and windows; 

ii. Energy-efficient, installed
appliances; 

c. Betterment of the essential 
elements of a dwelling unit, such as: 

i. New roofs and gutters; 

ii. Kitchens or bathrooms; and 

iii. Interior painting;

d. Providing handicap access to the
dwelling; 

e. Removal or mitigation of health and
safety hazards, such as: 

i. Installation of fire walls 
between de facto dwelling units;

Attachment B



Minor Home Repair Grant Program Administrative Code 
(October 2002) 1-06-2 

ii. Structural repair or 
replacement, such as foundation or 
termite work; 

 
iii. Repair or replacement of 
walkways or porches that present a 
“trip and fall” hazard; 

 
iv. Drainage work; 

 
v. Sewer work; and 

 
vi. Replacement of unsafe 
security bars and gates. 
 

1.06.060 Retroactive Date. 
 
An improvement shall be eligible for a grant 
if construction of the work began on or after 
September 13, 2002. 
 
1.06.070 Full or Part Payment.  
 
Grants may be used to pay all or any part of 
any eligible work. 

 
1.06.080 Process.  
 
a. The City Manager shall designate a 
Housing Coordinator who shall be 
responsible for processing applications and 
coordinating all other staff responsibilities in 
connection with the Minor Housing Grant 
program. The City Manager shall be and 
hereby is authorized to establish rules and 
regulations reasonably necessary to 
implement the Minor Housing Repair Grant 
Program, and is authorized to expend funds 
to implement the program, provided that the 
expenditures of funds are within the budget 
set by the City Council. 
 
b. All grant payments shall be made 
directly to the contractor performing the work 
or the vendor furnishing the materials for the 
home repairs. The homeowner shall be 
responsible for all costs and expenses over 
and above the grant awarded by the Town. 

 
 
 
 


	12.12.18 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Declaration of Election Results
	A. Resolution Declaring Election Results - November 6 2018 General Municipal Election-c1
	Exhibit A - County Certification of Election


	2. Minutes - 11.28.18 Regular Meeting
	3. Minutes - 12.04.18 Special Meeting
	4. Report of Checks Paid - November
	5. CFPD Memorandum of Understanding
	A. Resolution
	B. Memorandum of Understanding

	6. Janitorial Services Contract
	A. Resolution - Janitorial Services Contract
	B. Contract

	7. Development Impact Fee Report (AB 1600)
	A. FY 2017-18 Development Impact Fee Report

	8. HEART Loan
	A. Resolution
	B. Draft HEART Agreement

	9. Council Committee Assignments 2019
	A. Council Committee Assignments 2019 Worksheet

	10. Council of Cities and City Selection Committee
	A. List of Vacancies
	B. Letters of Interest
	C. Proxy Designee Form

	11. Cost of Service
	A. Draft User Fee and Charges Schedule
	Draft User Fee and Charges Schedule - Planning
	Draft User Fee and Charges Schedule - Engineering
	Draft User Fee and Charges Schedule - Building

	B. Administrative Code 1.06 Minor Home Repair Grant Program




